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The Diocesan Board of Finance 
supports this geographical area
We have enjoyed building our relationship 
with the Channel Islands and look forward 
to completing the legal process to link them            
to the Diocese.
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‘He who calls you is faithful;  
 he will surely do it’’ 
 1 Thessalonians 5:24

Photos by: Ash Mills (this page)
Ash Mills (right hand page)

Foreword
The Rt Revd Karen Gorham

We look back on 2021 with a great deal of thankfulness for God’s 
faithfulness. It was another challenging year, as the pandemic 
continued to impact on the worshipping activities of our churches. 
The restrictions meant that in-person attendance has been much 
lower than in previous years, as were the numbers of baptisms and 
marriages. Churches have adjusted to offer ‘at home’ services - 
online, by phone, post, and email. It has been a joy to sing again, 
and we continue to discern what a ‘new normal’ looks like for 
ongoing work, worship, and witness. The dedication of all our 
clergy, chaplains, lay leaders, church school leaders and church 
PGmDFST�IBT�CFFO�JNNFOTF�BOE�*�HJWF�UIBOLT�GPS�BMM�UIF�DPOUJOVFE�
commitment to being local Christian communities.

In July we said goodbye to Bishop Nicholas and Helen, giving 
thanks for their ministry over the last ten years: a ministry which 
has brought prominence to an environmental agenda in the wider 
church, a commitment as sponsoring bishop to the encouragement 
of our ordinands and curates and to the renewal of hope as the 
Diocese has continued to pray, serve, and grow. 

�����DIBMMFOHFE�VT�mOBODJBMMZ�BT�B�%JPDFTF�BOE�*�HJWF�UIBOLT�UPP�
for the dedication of Diocesan staff and our committee members in 
EJGmDVMU�UJNFT��5IF�(FOFSPVT�(JWJOH�DBNQBJHO�XBT�FNCSBDFE�CZ�
many parishes and has provided us with an off the shelf resource 
on Christian giving. The campaign’s legacy has been increased 
payments of Share at the end of the year, and the appointment of a 
Giving Advisor to give support to parishes going forward. My hope 
is that by the end of 2022 many will have embraced new technology 
with the installation of contactless machines.

The Rural Hope project, the commitment to the work of community 
hubs and the development of a lay Pioneer Course all continue to 
encourage our local mission and ministry. A new vocations vision 
and team, with the addition of a soon to be appointed Lay Ministry 
%FWFMPQNFOU�0GmDFS
�NBLFT�TVSF�UIBU�XF�QSPWJEF�SFTPVSDFT�GPS�
training as a response to what God calls individuals into. Numbers of 
DPOmSNBUJPO�DBOEJEBUFT�SFNBJO�TUFBEZ�XIJDI�JT�BOPUIFS�JOEJDBUJPO�PG�
the work of God’s Holy Spirit across the Diocese.



The second half of the year was given to 
considering the needs of the Diocese in 
relation to a new bishop. The Vacancy in See 
committee, ably led by the Dean, oversaw this 
work, and our Crown Nomination Commission 
SFQSFTFOUBUJWFT�XPSLFE�IBSE�SFnFDUJOH�UIF�
Diocese in the appointment process. We 
are now looking forward to the arrival of    
The Rt Revd Stephen Lake and seeing what 
God wants from us for the next stage of our 
Diocesan journey.
In the meantime, partnerships with Sarum 
College, the Cathedral, and the Diocesan 
#PBSE�PG�&EVDBUJPO�DPOUJOVF�UP�nPVSJTI��8F�
now share Licensed Lay Minister training, and 
HR resources with our neighbouring Diocese 
of Bath and Wells.

It has been a joy to serve you. There is so 
much to give thanks to God for as the church 
on the ground works with Christ, in being the 
salt and light in our world. This report gives us 
just a glimpse of it.

May God bless you all.

The Rt Revd Karen Gorham
Bishop of Sherborne and Acting Bishop of Salisbury

 We celebrated Bishop Nicholas, the 78th Bishop  
 of Salisbury, at his last Evensong in July 2021:

‘A man of the people and a  
 champion of “the lost, the last 
 and the least”, a Bishop that
 our Diocese has come to 
 know and love’
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Our Purpose  
The purpose of the Diocesan Board of Finance (DBF) is to promote and assist 
the work and purposes of the Church of England in the Diocese of Salisbury. 
This is achieved principally through the provision and support of ministry across 
the 432 parishes of the Diocese. The executive also provides advice, training 
and resources to clergy, laity and parishes all to support the life of the Church 
and the advancement of Christ’s Kingdom.  

Public Benefit   
The Diocesan Board of Finance (DBF) takes account of the Charity Commission 
HFOFSBM�HVJEBODF�PO�QVCMJD�CFOFmU�XIFO�SFWJFXJOH�JUT�QVSQPTF�BOE�JO�
considering how planned activities meet that aim.  
Throughout this report we endeavour to explain how our purpose, objectives 
BOE�BDUJWJUJFT�CFOFmU�UIF�QVCMJD��"T�UIF�$IVSDI�PG�&OHMBOE
�XF�BJN�GPS�PVS�
mission, ministry and worship to be open to all. Our goal is a thriving Christian 
presence serving God in every part of the Diocese.  
Our authorised ministers provide spiritual welfare to all individuals within the 
community. In addition to regular weekday/ Sunday services that are open to all, 
a wide range of events, workshops and courses are available for those seeking 
to explore their relationship with God.  
Through social action, we aim to respond to the needs of local communities and 
the wider world. The Diocese makes grants at a local and national level to have 
B�QPTJUJWF�XJEFS�JOnVFODF��

Our aspirations
Christ is our hope, and the sure foundation of his Church. Because of this we 
NBZ�GBDF�UIF�GVUVSF�XJUI�DPOmEFODF
�IPXFWFS�UVSCVMFOU�UIF�UJNFT��0WFS�UIF�MBTU�
two years, the Covid pandemic has altered and tested our life together in all 
kinds of ways. Yet it has also returned us to the deep roots and extraordinary 
resilience of the local church, which remains the core of our mission in the 
Diocese of Salisbury.  
As a Diocese we are committed to an evolving parish ministry – and the local, 
visible, and often pioneering presence of its priests, people, and buildings. 
We recognise that we are at a transitional point in our life and, while we await 
the direction to be set by our new Diocesan Bishop, we adopted a Mission & 
Pastoral Plan as a working guide for our interim planning. This stemmed from 
our existing Diocesan vision of Renewing Hope: Pray, Serve, Grow and its 
SFmOFNFOU�	GSPN�����
�JOUP�UISFF�QSJPSJUJFT�
•  Discipleship & evangelism 
•  Dynamic collaboration
•  Community transformation
Our Mission & Pastoral Plan set some goals around these priorities, which have 
IFMQFE�UP�GSBNF�OPU�POMZ�PVS�mOBODJBM�QMBOOJOH�BOE�UIF�XPSL�PG�%JPDFTBO�TUBGG�
(especially those in the Mission, Ministry & Communications Department), but 
crucially also the deanery plans that are being developed concurrently.

Our purpose and aspirations
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Its aspirations may be summarised as follows: 
Clearer paths to Mission & Ministry 
• 8F�XJMM�QVSTVF�B�TJHOJmDBOU�JODSFBTF�JO�WPDBUJPOT�UP�BMM�GPSNT�PG�$ISJTUJBO�

service, including licensed and commissioned ministries, and will make 
realistic projections for the number of stipendiary clergy, while growing a 
new cohort of Associate Priests and Licensed Lay Ministers. 

• In growing collaboration with the Diocesan Board of Education, local 
schools, and civic partnerships, we will respond to emerging missionary 
challenges by resourcing programmes for discipleship, social justice,  
and community transformation, which include:  

  •    Recommendations for reaching Net Zero by 2030.
  •    Increasing the number of community hubs (local centres 
        for linking church, community, and school).
  •    The expansion of the Aldhelm Fund as a resource pool
        for mission and ministry initiatives. 
  
Better Care for those who serve 
• We hope to lighten the burden on local churches in various ways: 
  •    Providing for the changing welfare needs of clergy and volunteers, 
        applying the recommendations of the new Clergy Covenant. 
  •    3FTPVSDJOH�DIVSDI�PGmDF�IPMEFST�BOE�WPMVOUFFST�UISPVHI�FOIBODFE�
        Parish Support functions, with more locally accessible training for 
                  those considering a range of responsibilities in church and 
        community, revised DAC processes, property provision
        and better-connected administration.  
  
Stronger roots for local churches  
•� 3FDPHOJTJOH�UIF�QSFTTVSF�PO�QBSJTI�BOE�%JPDFTBO�mOBODFT
�B�(FOFSPVT�

Giving campaign in 2021 will be followed by a review of the Parish Share 
in 2022. We shall encourage greater deanery collaboration in meeting the 
mOBODJBM�DIBMMFOHF�BOE�TFFL�UP�DVMUJWBUF�B�EFFQ�MFWFM�PG�USVTU�BOE�NVUVBM�
co-operation between the Diocesan Board of Finance and the local church. 

 
• A strategic approach to supporting church buildings is needed, especially 

for ‘fragile’ churches – those that are struggling to sustain their current 
fabric, programme, or congregation. A new ‘church buildings’ working 
group will prepare a toolkit of resources to help our parishes consider how 
best to plan for the future of their built heritage. 

Diocesan governance – through synods, councils, and committees – can be 
complex, but it is vital that this connects with mission and pastoral planning 
at the local level, in order that our strategy may be shaped by the insights of 
God’s renewing work in each place.
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Throughout 2021, the DBF has served and resourced the Diocese at a 
time of changing patterns of mission and ministry, much of which has 
been shaped by the Covid pandemic. 
8F�TFFL�UP�TFSWF�JO�B�XBZ�UIBU�FOBCMFT�BMM�UP�nPVSJTI�JO�UIFJS�
contribution, and in close partnership with other parts of the Diocese 
and beyond, from the Diocesan Board of Education (DBE) and 
Cathedral to Sudan and South Sudan, and the Diocese of Bath and 
Wells with whom we share some roles. 
"T�XF�SFnFDU�PO�B�DIBMMFOHJOH�ZFBS
�XF�BSF�HSBUFGVM�GPS�BMM�(PE�T�
generosity, the leadership of Bishop Nicholas and Bishop Karen, and 
the excitement of anticipating Bishop Stephen’s arrival later this year. 
5ISPVHIPVU�UIF�ZFBS�XF�IBWF�TPVHIU�UP�JNQSPWF�PVS�mOBODJBM�
communications, transparency and accountability. We ran a Generous 
Giving campaign in a very challenging environment, with extensive 
training for clergy in speaking and preaching on giving as part of 
discipleship – and give thanks for the generosity of parishes who 
supported Share at 90% of the request. 
We deployed 87% of our budget to support the direct costs of clergy 
and the indirect costs to parish ministry. We increased our focus on lay 
NJOJTUSZ�BOE�UPPL�TUFQT�UP�FOTVSF�XF�XFSF�HBJOJOH�NBYJNVN�CFOFmU�
from the National Church investment in the Rural Hope programme.  
8F�JOWFTUFE�JO�OFX�*5�TZTUFNT�UP�JNQSPWF�PVS�TFSWJDF�BOE�FGmDJFODZ��
There has been further restructuring of roles to ensure that the DBF 
can best support the changing needs of the local church. Thanks to 
our partnership with the DBE and funding from the All Churches Trust,            
we launched an exciting expansion of the Community Hub Programme. 
All this as we moved to the practicalities of delivering the Net Zero 
commitment made by the Church of England last year, with our 
QSPQFSUZ�UFBN�XPSLJOH�IBSE�UP�mOE�TVTUBJOBCMF�XBZT�UP�SFBDI�UIF��
target locally.
Thank you to our outgoing DBF Chair, Nigel Salisbury. Nigel has 
led the important process of moving into a sustainable future by 
encouraging an exploration of all areas of expenditure and potential 
income. At the same time, he has helped us all to focus on the 
importance of relationships and trust across the Diocese with open 
and transparent engagement and communications. He will be            
greatly missed.
As you read the following pages, we hope you will join with us in   
giving thanks to God for all this year has been.  

David Pain

Message from our 
Diocesan Secretary 

David Pain
Diocesan Secretary
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What did we do?
The DBF served and resourced 
the Diocese at a time of changing 
patterns of mission and ministry, 
much of which has been reshaped 
by the pandemic
At the front line of
WKH�'%)·V�PLQLVWU\�
VXSSRUWLQJ�ORFDO�
FKXUFKHV�DUH�
RXU�DUHD�RIÀFHV�
LQ�5DPVEXU\�
DQG�6KHUERUQH
The Ramsbury 
team (Archdeacons 
Sue and Alan, with 
Bishop Andrew) spent 
2021 close to the local 
church as it emerged 
from lockdown in the northern half of our Diocese. 
Pastoral oversight of our clergy is at the heart of 
our work, with much of the year spent recruiting, 
supporting, and meeting with church leaders, 
many of whom have had a testing two years.
With the re-opening of church buildings for 
worship and community outreach, the Diocesan 
Mission and Ministry Committee began to 
consider new resources for the usage, upkeep, 
and support of church buildings, which we hope 
to see becoming available in 2022. 
Praying and worshipping – even singing! - with 
our parishes in person have been a great joy this 
last year, and we are more grateful than ever for 
our parishes generosity and resilience.

Building Block Church launched S
ep

tem
be

r 2
02

1

The work of mission and ministry in Dorset 
overseen by the Sherborne Team (Archdeacons 
Antony and Penny with Bishop Karen) has been 
marked by challenge and change. The Mission 
Oversight Group continues to be inspired by the 
development of pioneer ministry, fresh expressions, 
and a mixed ecology of church. New patterns 
and models of ministry have been developed to 
enable collaboration and partnership, alongside 
the pragmatic realism of costs and context. The 
deaneries have contributed the reduction of 
UIF�FRVJWBMFOU�PG�mWF�QPTUT�UPXBSET�%JPDFTBO�
savings, as well as the sale of some houses. 
More collaborative change is planned, taking 
into consideration housing growth and continued 
EFWFMPQNFOU�PG�nFYJCMF�MBZ�NJOJTUSZ�XJUI�UIF�OVNCFS�
of Lay Worship Leaders and Licensed Lay Ministers 
increasing.
The support, encouragement and appointment of 
clergy has been vital, through Ministry Development 
Review, safer recruitment, and the development of 
good pastoral relationships. The number of good 
applicants for posts continues to be a strength as 
some long serving clergy retire. The many years of 
service that individuals give and the large number 
of retired clergy with 
PTO offering their  
services are a real
gift to the local 
church. The 
PGmDFT�BU�
Ash Farm, 
Stourpaine, 
are a real 
asset and will 
continue to 
develop as a 
hub for Diocesan 
work in Dorset.

During the year the Diocesan Board of Education and Board of 
Finance have worked hard to provide a safe and caring environment 
for everyone. Protecting the vulnerable is at the heart of the Christian 
faith. Our continued commitment to raising awareness and embed 
safeguarding in everything we do is further evidenced by over 800 
people attending safeguarding courses run by our safeguarding 
team, with a further 1,150 completing their Basic and Foundation 
safeguarding courses. With the support of our Parish Safeguarding 
0GmDFST
�UIF�UFBN�JOJUJBUFE�PS�SFOFXFE�UIF�%#4�DIFDLT�PG�PWFS�����������
700 people. 
November saw the start of a new venture which will see the Diocese 
strengthening its already close working relationships with Splitz, 
Wiltshire’s domestic abuse charity. Nina Tanner (pictured) an 
Independent Sexual Violence Advisor, has been commissioned for 
a day a week to work alongside survivors and victims who have 
experienced church-related abuse within our Diocese.

Safeguarding

Ni
na

 Ta
nner

Wild Church, with a creative response to the story of the wise men arriving with their g
ifts
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5IF�XPSL�PG�DIBQMBJODZ�DPOUJOVFT�UP�HSPX�BOE�nPVSJTI�XJUIJO�UIF�%JPDFTF��
Spanning lay, ordained, full-time, part-time, voluntary and paid, chaplains are 
coming alongside a wide spectrum of people within an ever increasing variety of 
contexts. In hospitals, care homes, the emergency services, the deaf and hard of 
hearing community, the military, schools, universities, the farming and agricultural 
community, town centres and shops, charities, businesses, the list could go on.
The Chaplaincy Day held in February 2021 further enhanced this picture with 
over 90 chaplains in virtual attendance.
The Hub for Part-Time, Volunteer and Lay chaplains has continued to 
gain momentum, with demand for increasing the frequency of gatherings 
throughout the year. The place of chaplaincy within Community Hubs is 
also providing some exciting and fruitful opportunities at the intersection 
of church, school and community.
Chaplaincy featuring in the November 2021 Diocesan Synod was also 
extremely positive, encouraging and well-received.

Chaplaincy

The four Archidiaconal Mission and Pastoral Committees (on behalf 
of the Bishop’s Council) deal with pastoral matters in their area 
including noting all clergy vacancies and appointments, parish 
re-organisation, suspensions of presentation, boundary changes, 
deanery and presence mapping, clergy deployment and strategic 
planning through their deanery plans. 
The committees met on-line via Zoom throughout 2021 and 
focussed on addressing issues for mission and ministry raised by 
the pandemic, on the Diocesan budget and clergy deployment. 
Each archdiaconal committee was asked to reimagine ministry that 
balances the needs of the local communities within the budget 
set by Diocesan Synod. Pastoral consultations re-commenced but 
with longer periods allowed for consultation and a more rigorous 
discussion phase to ensure parishes were well informed. Covid 
restricted us to completing three pastoral schemes in 2021 and 
early 2022, but generated a much greater interest in exploring 
opportunities for uniting parishes. Recognising the challenge to 
SFUBJOJOH�QBSJTI�PGmDFST�	MJLF�1$$�4FDSFUBSJFT
�5SFBTVSFST�BOE�
Churchwardens) we are recruiting a Learning and Development 
0GmDFS�UP�IFMQ�VT�JNQSPWF�UIF�USBJOJOH�BOE�TVQQPSU�XF�PGGFS�QFPQMF�
in these roles.

Pastoral Reorganisation

We continued our creative expressions of ministry across the Diocese through our pioneering work, 
XJUI�1PPMF�.JTTJPOBM�$PNNVOJUJFT�	1.$
�QBSUOFSJOH�XJUI�UIF�%JPDFTF�UP�QSPWJEF�TQFDJmD�TVQQPSU�
and training to our four pioneer curates. 
A partnership between PMC, Diocese of Salisbury, Church Mission Society (CMS), 
%JPDFTF�PG�#BUI���8FMMT�BOE�%JPDFTF�PG�5SVSP�IBT�CFHVO�UP�EFMJWFS�UIF�$.4�DFSUJmDBUF
�
a year-long training course for lay pioneers. This course will be the pathway toward Commissioned 
-BZ�1JPOFFS�NJOJTUSZ�JO�UIF�%JPDFTF�XJUI�UIF�mSTU�DPIPSU�PG�OJOF�QFPQMF�CFJOH�GSPN�UIF�%JPDFTF��
5IF�%PSTFU�1JPOFFS�/FUXPSL�IBE�JUT�mSTU�NFFUJOH�BU�UIF�FOE�PG������BOE�IBT�HSPXO�BOE�CFDPNF�
established in the past year. It is an ecumenical partnership between PMC and Southern Counties 
Baptist Association supported by the Diocese of Salisbury and Churches Together in Dorset. We 
now have a mailing list of 40 pioneers across Dorset who come together roughly three times a year 
to learn together and support one another. The aim is to extend this by forming another hub in  
Wiltshire in the future.

Pioneering

Bishop Nicholas g
ivin

g a
 bl

es
sin

g

Chaplaincy work at Bournemouth 
Univ

er
sit

y



11The Salisbury Diocesan Board of Finance 2021

Rural Hope

Climate 2021

We are gradually seeing the integration of the Rural Hope project 
JOUP�UIF�MJGF�PG�UIF�%JPDFTF
�BT�XF�DPNF�UP�UIF�FOE�PG�UIF�TQFDJmD�
Strategic Development Fund money. Thanks to the continuing 
TVQQPSU�PG�UIF�GPVS�3VSBM�'JFME�0GmDFST
�XF�TBX����3VSBM�
Hope-supported new worshipping communities emerge when 
lockdown lifted, with 175 people celebrating their faith together.
In July, nine Initial Ministerial Education (IME6) curates 
participated in short rural placements that gave them an 
opportunity to experience the joys and challenges of rural 
ministry. A highlight of the placement is the Rural Experience 
Day which in 2021 enabled curates to spend the morning with 
UIF�#FBNJOTUFS�UFBN�	XIP�NJOJTUFS�UP�B�NVMUJ�QBSJTI�CFOFmDF�
of 15 churches) and the afternoon with the Pilsdon Community 
which provides a rural haven for those living fragile lives.
Twelve new students joined the Rural Training Pathway at Sarum 
College in September, making a total of 46 students for lay 
and ordained ministry who have participated or are currently 
participating in the course. Student feedback continues to be 
highly positive. This course remains unique in the UK in offering 
USBJOJOH�TQFDJmDBMMZ�GPS�SVSBM�NJOJTUSZ�

Celebrating Plough Sun
da

y

Hilary Bond at COP26

Our increased support for those exploring their vocations to either 
MBZ�PS�PSEBJOFE�NJOJTUSZ�SFnFDUT�PVS�EFTJSF�UP�FOBCMF�FWFSZPOF�UP�
respond to God’s call on their lives. The Ministry Formation Team, 
under the leadership of Rev Nigel Done, has developed a team of 
around 20 vocation mentors (VMs) and seven vocation advisors (VAs).
VAs work with people actively seeking to explore their calling within 
the Diocesan discernment process, whilst VMs offer a space for initial 
enquirers to have early conversations outside the formal process, 
signpost to resources, and encourage, nurture and promote vocational 
conversations within the local context.  
In 2021, nine candidates attended the LLM discernment day, with a further 
11 exploring their call to ordained ministry. Other vocations explored during the 
year included lay pastoral assistants and lay worship leaders.

Vocations

LLM Admission Service 18th Septem
ber 2021

The COP26 meeting in Glasgow was an opportunity for young and old 
across our Diocese to express their concern for the environment, one of the 
many legacies from Bishop Nicholas’ leadership. David Pain, Diocesan 
Secretary, is on the National Church working group on Net Zero, and we 
continue to proactively seek practical ways to implement Net Zero within 
the Diocese. There is a lot of work to do, locally and nationally, but the 
Diocese of Salisbury has been proactive and disinvested in fossil fuels.
The DBF property team has already updated clergy houses and properties 
it owns, with double-glazing, roof insulation and cavity insulation where 
appropriate, and as church buildings open up again the Diocesan Mission 
and Ministry Committee is considering their usage, upkeep and support.
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Journeying with Sudan
and South Sudan
The DBF supports the Sudan Committee 
CZ�BENJOJTUFSJOH�BMM�UIFJS�mOBODFT�BOE�
payment of grants, in order to promote 
the Sudan link.
The Salisbury-Sudans partnership is 50 
years old. It is a challenging journey, with 
DPOnJDU�BOE�GBNJOF�JO�CPUI�DPVOUSJFT
�
BOE�BMBT
�CFDBVTF�PG�$PWJE
�TJHOJmDBOU�
reductions in what we could offer 
mOBODJBMMZ��.VDI�PG�PVS�JODPNF�DPNFT�
from collections at episcopal events
o�XIFO�PVS�UISFF�CJTIPQT�XPVME�PGmDJBUF��
We continue to prioritise theological 
education, and healthcare. We have 
sustained important work in both Sudans, 
supporting development initiatives and 
church schools and we are grateful for 
our longstanding, fruitful partnership with 
Christian Aid.
5IF�DIVSDI�IBT�B�DSVDJBM�SPMF�JO�mOEJOH�
solutions to ethnic violence particularly in 
the decade after Sudan and South Sudan 
separated. We enjoy good relationships 
with the two Primates and after only 
being able to meet virtually, when 
intermittent internet connections allowed, 
we are looking forward to the Lambeth 
Conference in Canterbury, when we hope 
to meet the 70 bishops from Sudan and 
South Sudan. 

The DBF is committed to work in partnership with groups 
within and beyond the Diocese. Here is a summary of 
highlights from our partnership working throughout 2021

Whilst Covid prevented us gathering frequently as 
a whole Diocese, our close partnership with the 
Cathedral continues through the Bishop’s Staff and 
the College of Canons. The Diocese appreciates the 
way the Cathedral hold us in prayer regularly and 
offers hospitality and welcome for special occasions, 
QBSUJDVMBSMZ�SFHVMBS�DPOmSNBUJPO�TFSWJDFT�
The DBF supported and resourced the Vacancy in 
See process, working with the committee elected 
by Diocesan Synod and those elected to the Crown 
Nominations Commission. We were delighted to 
XFMDPNF�%FBO�4UFQIFO�-BLF
�BOE�UP�mOJTI�UIF�
announcement day of his appointment as our Bishop 
with Evensong shared together.

The Cathedral
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 the last day of the 2021 Education conference
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The close partnership between the DBF 
and its sister organisation, the DBE, has 
continued throughout the year, and the 
DBF made a grant to support their work 
with children and young people. The 
DBE has worked to support school and 
parish leaders in their complex roles in 
many ways, and the strong partnership is 
FTQFDJBMMZ�TFFO�UISPVHI�UIF�mWF�NBSLFU�
town community hubs as we listen to the 
voice of children and young people about 
what matters to them.
Pictured here we see young people at 
St Mary’s Church of England school, 
Bridport, walking together, experiencing 
nature and having the chance to talk 
about big issues. They follow a route card 
XJUI�SFnFDUJWF�BDUJWJUJFT�BOE�RVFTUJPOT�
and take this home to encourage them 
to have a go with their families – opening 
PQQPSUVOJUZ�GPS�SFnFDUJPO�
The DBE is taking a lead role in the 
innovative national Rural Teaching 
Partnership project which has brought ten 
gifted teachers to our Diocese, committed 
to working in rural schools where it is 
often hard to recruit; each are skilled
teachers vitally wanting to begin their 
careers in church schools, at the centre 
of village and parish life.
The DBE also gained government funding 
to support Aided schools in their journey 
towards Net Zero by 2030 – for example 
the installation of a school’s ground 
source heat pump at St Gregory’s Church 
of England Primary School, Marnhull.

The Diocesan Board of Education (DBE)
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The partnership between the DBF and Sarum 
College continued to deepen during 2021. Sarum 
College partners with the DBF in delivering the initial 
training of both Licensed Lay Ministry and ordinands 
training for ordained ministry. 
As part of the Rural Hope Funded Programme, 
Sarum College delivers a Rural Ministry Pathway, 
offering a foundation of ministry training to prepare 
and equip leaders, lay and ordained for mission 
and ministry within a rural context. Throughout the 
course of the year Sarum College supported the 
delivery of Continuing Ministerial Education.   

Sarum College

Sarum College
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Finance and property - within 
the DBF, we also resource the 
local church

Clergy Property Team
Our clergy property team worked hard to increase 
FGmDJFODZ�BOE�NBYJNJTF�UIF�NBSLFU�DPOEJUJPOT�UIJT�
ZFBS
�TFMMJOH�mWF�TVSQMVT�IPVTFT�BU�B�QSPmU�PG�b���L
�
and maintaining 219 clergy houses – with total repair 
DPTUT�PG�b����N��5IFZ�JODSFBTFE�UIF�FGmDJFODZ�PG�
ongoing works to rental properties, and transferred the 
rental of houses to one agency, improving service and 
increasing rental income. 
We continued our proactive programme of identifying 
glebe plots of land with development potential and sold 
UISFF�QMPUT�BU�B�HPPE�QSPmU�EVSJOH�UIF�ZFBS��
We also approved the adoption of total return at the end 
of the year to give more options in using endowed funds 
for allowable purposes. 

Vicarage at St Paul·s Sherborne

8F�JNQSPWFE�UIF�USBOTQBSFODZ�PG�mOBODJBM�
communication with the issue of Share and Budget 
Guides and launched a monthly Financial Times that 
goes to all parish treasurers.
We also introduced Data Developments as a system 
for treasurers to use - currently funded by the DBF – 
which so far over 110 parishes have joined.  

Financial Communications

Clergy Property Team

Our printable resource guide to Fairer Share September 
20
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Our new Generous Giving campaign culminated in a 
series of events in September 2021 seeking to equip 
the local church to talk about giving with the aim of 
increasing income. 
We were delighted to announce the appointment of 
Anna Hardy as Giving Adviser in December 2021. This 
post is funded by the National Church. Anna has made 
an excellent start helping parishes set up mechanisms 
to increase giving and looking at what else can be 
done to increase parish income. 

Fundraising

GENEROSITY
WEEK

Our CofE Diocesan Generous Giving Campaign

1IPUPT�CZ��+POBUIBO�5SJGmUU�� DBF (this page left to right)
Ash Mills (right hand page, left to right)
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The year in numbers

Illustrations by: Becks Neale (double page spread)



17The Salisbury Diocesan Board of Finance 2021

*Results from survey sent to Church leaders across our Diocesan during December 2021, total 59 respondents
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Looking forward
A confident church emerging from Covid

Illustration by: Becks Neale (this page)
Illustrations by: Becks Neale / Photo by: Zach Culpin (right hand page)

‘With the appointment 
 of Stephen Lake as 
 our Bishop, we are 
 encouraged that the 
 Diocese will be  
 moving into a new 
 era with a fresh
 vision and strategy, 
 responding to the 
 opportunities of a 
 fast-changing 
 context. The DBF 
 will both support the 
 development of this 
 Diocesan wide vision 
 and strategy and 
 ensure that 
 resources enable 
 us to create a 
 sustainable future 
 in partnership        
 with others.’ 
 David Pain, Diocesan Secretary

We have celebrated the curious, the pioneering, and the creative approaches to ministry 
in the previous pages and are grateful for the hard work and inspiration of all our people. 
We are sustained by the ongoing day in day out prayer, worship and service that goes 
on across the Diocese. As we look forward, we are excited about the potential for God, 
UISPVHI�UIF�XPSL�PG�UIF�)PMZ�4QJSJU
�UP�FOBCMF�VT�UP�CF�B�DPOmEFOU�DIVSDI�DPNJOH�PVU�PG�
the Covid pandemic.
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‘It is such a privilege and a joy  
 to be called back to the Diocese 
 of Salisbury as Bishop. To be 
 able to serve in the places that  
 formed me will be something  
 rare and special…I hope to lead  
�B�DPOmEFOU�%JPDFTF�BT�XF�NPWF�
 out of the pandemic together’

¶0D\�WKH�IDYRXU�RI�WKH�
/RUG�RXU�*RG�UHVW�RQ�
XV��HVWDEOLVK�WKH�ZRUN�
RI�RXU�KDQGV�IRU�XV³�
\HV��HVWDEOLVK�WKH�ZRUN�

RI�RXU�KDQGV·

Psalm 90:17 

The Rt Revd Stephen Lake

We have been through a Vacancy in See process 
and are looking forward to working with our 
new Bishop, The Rt Revd Stephen Lake. When 
his arrival was announced he commented on 
the characteristics we were looking for in a 
new Bishop, and his invitation is for us all to 
be Caring, Courageous, Holy, Transforming, 
Unifying, Visionary and Visible. 
 

Welcoming our
new Bishop
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"T�*�XSJUF�UIJT�JOUSPEVDUJPO�JO�FBSMZ������UIF�IPSSJmD�FWFOUT�VOGPMEJOH�JO�
Ukraine provide a shocking perspective to the challenges we have faced in 
the Diocese during 2021.
Nonetheless, the ongoing pandemic has continued to impact our parishes, 
communities and individuals throughout the year, and that has had an 
inevitable knock-on effect upon the DBF.
In the circumstances I am pleased to be commenting on a result which, 
EFTQJUF�BOPUIFS�TJHOJmDBOU�EFmDJU
�JT�CFUUFS�UIBO�XF�IBE�GPSFTFFO�JO�UIF�
budget, and may contribute to a sense of renewed hope that we can 
DPMMFDUJWFMZ�XPSL�PVS�XBZ�UISPVHI�UIF�mOBODJBM�DIBMMFOHFT�XF�GBDF�
5IF�PVU�UVSO
�BO�PQFSBUJOH�EFmDJU�PG�b�
���L
�JT�B�GSBDUJPO�MFTT�UIBO������
thanks to the strong support we have continued to receive from parishes 
UISPVHI�UIFJS�QBZNFOU�PG�4IBSF��"U�b�
���L�4IBSF�SFDFJWFE�XBT�b��L����
higher than in 2020 and represented 90% of the Share requested.  
5IJT�GBMMT�TJHOJmDBOUMZ�CFIJOE�UIF�����PS�TP�XF�XFSF�VTFE�UP�SFDFJWJOH�
prior to the pandemic, but the stable situation between 2020 and 2021 
is encouraging and we are intensely grateful to all those in our parishes 
contributing to Share payment.
As illustrated later in this report, Share represented 73% of our diocesan 
income in 2021 and funds the bulk, but not all, of the cost of parish ministry.  
The balance of income is met from sources including investments, grants, 
fees and property income, but continues to fall short of expenditure.
At the same time this expenditure continues to be closely managed, but 
since the bulk of this relates to clergy stipends, pensions, housing and 
support costs we have been reluctant to make potentially damaging cuts to 
DMFSHZ�OVNCFST�XJUIPVU�FYQMPSJOH�BMM�PUIFS�PQUJPOT�mSTU�

Nigel Salisbury Message from our Chair 

Financial review
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Financial review
It is in order to help close this gap between income and expenditure that we have 
UIFSFGPSF�IBE�UP�UBLF�UIF�EJGmDVMU�EFDJTJPO�UP�BTL�GPS�BO�JODSFBTF�JO�4IBSF�PG����JO�
����
�XJUI�B�WJFX�UP�SFEVDJOH�UIF�EFmDJU�CFMPX�b�N�JO������BOE�UPXBSET�FMJNJOBUJOH�
it entirely by 2025.
This will also be facilitated by the long awaited reduction in contribution to the 
$IVSDI�PG�&OHMBOE�'VOEFE�1FOTJPO�4DIFNF�BT�UIBU�EFmDJU�JT�BMTP�FMJNJOBUFE
�
together with diligent management of our assets and ongoing cost control.  
)PXFWFS
�XJUI�JOnBUJPO�MJLFMZ�UP�FSPEF�NVDI
�JG�OPU�BMM
�PG�UIF�CFOFmU�PG�UIJT�VQMJGU
�JU�
seems likely that further increases will be required in future if the current levels of 
clergy deployment and support services are to be maintained.  
-BTU�ZFBS�XF�SFQPSUFE�PO�UIF�b���N�$PWJE�MPBO�XF�IBE�UBLFO�PVU�BT�B�QSFDBVUJPO�
BHBJOTU�QPPS�DBTInPX�EVSJOH�UIF�QBOEFNJD��'PSUVOBUFMZ
�PVS�DBTI�QPTJUJPO�IBT�
remained strong, assisted by the sale of surplus assets, and we are now able to 
consider an early payback of at least part of that loan.
It might appear strange that in a year in which we are reporting such a substantial 
PQFSBUJOH�EFmDJU�PVS�CBMBODF�TIFFU�TIPVME�IBWF�TUSFOHUIFOFE�CZ�b�
���L�UP�
b���
���L�CVU�UIJT�JT�BT�B�SFTVMU�QSJNBSJMZ�PG�UIF�CPVODF�CBDL�JO�JOWFTUNFOU�WBMVFT�
BDSPTT�PVS�QPSUGPMJPT�BTTJTUFE�CZ�QSPmUT�PO�UIF�TBMF�PG�BTTFUT�
Unfortunately much of this investment growth has been reversed in early 2022 
illustrating the continued volatility of investment markets, and that we can’t depend 
upon the sort of year on year growth that may have been seen in the past.
The strength of our balance sheet therefore could contribute to a misleading 
JNQSFTTJPO�PG�UIF�TUSFOHUI�PG�PVS�mOBODFT�PWFSBMM
�XIFO�UIFZ�DPOUJOVF�UP�CF�FSPEFE�
CZ�B�MPOH�TUBOEJOH�EFmDJU�DBVTFE�CZ�PVUHPJOHT�FYDFFEJOH�PVS�JODPNF��5IJT�IBT�
been exacerbated over the last two years by the impact of Covid on Share payment.  
Striking the right balance between clergy deployment (paid and unpaid) in the long 
UFSN
�BOE�UIF�mOBODJBM�NFBOT�BWBJMBCMF�UP�VT
�JT�DSJUJDBM�BOE�JT�UIF�UBTL�PG�UIF�.JTTJPO�
and Ministry Committee who achieve this through the Mission and Pastoral Plan 
BSPVOE�XIJDI�UIF�mOBODJBM�CVEHFU�JT�EFWFMPQFE���
So far we have thankfully avoided substantial cuts to clergy and continue to enjoy 
amongst the highest clergy to population ratios in the country, as well as one of the 
highest levels of church attendance.
These two facts are clearly connected and we remain committed to achieving a 
balanced budget without continuous and detrimental cuts to the provision of clergy 
or to the services offered. Whilst this is challenging we believe it is achievable with 
the continuing support of our parishes through Share.
For some while it has been recognised that the current Fairer Share system does not 
always operate as fairly and transparently as we would like. Whilst no system can 
be completely fair, we have committed to undertake a review, and this is underway 
through a process of consultation with parishes.
Some immediate improvements are being introduced for implementation as part of 
the budget for 2023, with any more radical changes to be introduced for the years 
2024 onwards. We hope in this way to maintain the support of parishes for a system 
that is understandable, transparent and fair.
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We continue to diligently manage our assets and have been pleased with the initial 
results following the transfer of part of our investment portfolio to Sarasin during the 
last year. This has also enabled us to divest ourselves of fossil fuel investments, 
whilst improving investment performance.
The previous appointment of Strutt and Parker to advise us on glebe and our 
QSPQFSUZ�BTTFUT�HFOFSBMMZ
�IBT�BMTP�CPSO�GSVJU�XJUI�B�OVNCFS�PG�CFOFmDJBM�TBMFT�
during the year. They are currently advising us in respect of Church House which is 
OPU�GFMU�UP�CF�TVJUBCMF�BT�B�EJPDFTBO�PGmDF�JO�UIF�MPOHFS�UFSN�
A further and important piece of work undertaken during the year is a review of all 
the various funds which together make up the assets of the DBF.  
With guidance from our auditors Haysmacintyre, Director of Finance and Asset 
Management Liz Ashmead has worked tirelessly back through years of transactions 
to revisit the provenance of all our assets and ensure they are correctly allocated 
between funds.
5IJT�IBT�IBE�UIF�JNNFEJBUF�CFOFmU�PG�BO�JNQSPWFNFOU�JO�UIF�QPTJUJPO�PG�PVS�
unrestricted general fund, and paves the way for our planned move towards a total 
SFUVSO�BQQSPBDI
�XJUI�UIF�JODSFBTFE�nFYJCJMJUZ�UIBU�XJMM�CSJOH
�QBSUJDVMBSMZ�JO�UIF�VTF�PG�
any future proceeds from glebe.  
4P�MPPLJOH�CFZPOE�UIF�JNNFEJBUF�mOBODJBM�PVUDPNF
������IBT�CFFO�B�ZFBS�PG�
QSPHSFTT�PO�NBOZ�GSPOUT�GPS�%#'
�BT�SFnFDUFE�JO�UIF�QBHFT�PG�UIJT�SFQPSU�
Under the expert leadership of David Pain and his team, a steady programme of 
modernisation and innovation continues, covering all aspects of our operations, 
TUBGmOH
�TUSVDUVSFT�BOE�TFSWJDF�QSPWJTJPO�UP�QBSJTIFT�BOE�DMFSHZ�
I am extremely grateful to David and all the DBF staff for all that they have done, 
BU�UJNFT�JO�WFSZ�EJGmDVMU�BOE�USZJOH�DJSDVNTUBODFT
�UP�NBJOUBJO�iCVTJOFTT�BT�VTVBMw�
whilst moving the change and project agenda successfully forward.  
"OE�BGUFS�BOPUIFS�ZFBS�PG�TJHOJmDBOU�DIBMMFOHF�*�BMTP�PGGFS�HSBUFGVM�UIBOLT�PO�CFIBMG�
of the DBF to all our clergy, volunteers, and all those who support mission in this 
%JPDFTF�GPS�UIFJS�DPOUJOVFE�DPNNJUNFOU�BOE�TFSWJDF�UISPVHI�UIFTF�EJGmDVMU�UJNFT�
In 2021 we said farewell to Bishop Nicholas with thanks for his devoted service to 
the Diocese over 10 years. During the last 6 months of the year and into 2022 we 
have been extremely fortunate to be led with wisdom and skill by Bishop Karen 
and are very grateful to her for her ministry and leadership during this period of 
transition. 
As we stand now on the threshold of a new era with our next bishop, The Rt Revd 
4UFQIFO�-BLF
�*�JO�UVSO�QSFQBSF�UP�IBOE�PWFS�DIBJS�PG�UIF�%#'�JO�IPQFGVM�DPOmEFODF�
for the future, without underestimating the many challenges that remain.
This I do offering prayers and thanks to God, as Bishop Nicholas would often say, 
for God’s small miracle which is the Diocese of Salisbury. 

Nigel Salisbury,
Chair of the Diocesan Board of Finance
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Summary of statement of financial activities (SoFA) 
for year ended 31 December 2021

Where does the money come from? 
The biggest source of income (Note 2) is the contributions from the parishes. Interestingly the receipt 
pattern over the past 5 years shows that receipts are considerably lower than receipts 2017–2019. 

 

5IJT�PG�DPVSTF�SFnFDUT�UIF�FGGFDUT�PG�$PWJE�PO�QBSJTI�JODPNFT�CVU�TIPXT�XIZ�UIF�EFmDJU�IBT�JODSFBTFE�
in the last two years and why it was felt necessary to increase share for 2022. The fact that this is by far 
UIF�CJHHFTU�TPVSDF�PG�JODPNF�BMTP�FNQIBTJTFT�UIF�GSBHJMJUZ�PG�%JPDFTBO�mOBODFT��UIF�OFFE�UP�QVSTVF�
other forms of income and to control costs and to reach parity of income and expenditure. Considering 
UIF�JODSFBTF�JO�JOnBUJPO�PWFS�UIJT�QFSJPE�UIJT�TPVSDF�PG�JODPNF�JT�JO�EFDMJOF��
Receipts from the National Church (Note 3) encompass funding for Rural Hope; for ordinands under 
the Resourcing Ministerial Education scheme; for Curates and for Bishops’ Secretaries.  
Other donations comprise gifts to fund our work in the Sudans; parochial contributions towards 
TQFDJmD�TUJQFOET��HSBOUT�GSPN�UIF�"MM�$IVSDIFT�5SVTU�o�GPS�BMM�PG�UIFTF�XF�PGGFS�TJODFSF�UIBOLT��
Charitable activities comprise parochial fees and management fees.  
Other activities are rental incomes from letting clergy houses in vacancies (substantial increase on 
2020) and the turnover of the property trading company SDBF BC Ltd. 
Investment income is from investments with funds managers and rental income from glebe properties. 

The details of income are in Notes 2-7�PG�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�

Overall movement in funds 2021 2020
£,000 £,000

0QFSBUJOH�EFmDJU (1,459) (1,513)
Net gains/(losses) on investments/property/glebe 3,902 300
Increase in value linked loan creditor (42) -
3FEVDUJPO�JO�QFOTJPO�EFmDJU�MJBCJMJUZ� 372 483
Increase/(decrease) in funds 2,773 (730)

%UHDNGRZQ�RI�RSHUDWLQJ�GHÀFLW� 2021 2020 Variance
£,000 £,000 £,000

Total income 13,303 13,011 292
Total expenditure (14,762) (14,524) (238)
2SHUDWLQJ�GHÀFLW (1,459) (1,513) 54

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Parish Share receipts 9,895 9,916 10,273 9,604 9,697

Breakdown of income  2021 2020 Variance
Donations: £,000 £,000 £,000

    Parish Share 9,697 9,604 93
    Archbishops’ Council & Church Commissioners 682 691 (9)
   Other donations 611 430 181
Charitable activities 682 683 (1)
Other activities 740 684 56
Investments 891 919 (28)
Total income 13,303 13,011 292
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What is the income spent on?
Breakdown of Expenditure 2021 2020 Variance
Direct Ministry
Charitable activities (Note 9) £,000 £,000 £,000

Stipends, National Insurance, and A Levy 5,256 5,284 (28)
Parochial salaries 201 187 14
Clergy pensions 1,780 1,800 (20)
Clergy expenses 150 189 (39)
Maintenance of clergy property 2,104 1,844 260
Fund raising costs (Note 8)
Expenses of letting properties 71 48 23

9,562 9,352 210

Ministerial support and support to parishes
Charitable activities (Note 9)
Ministry support team 597 629 (32)
Communications 109 99 10
Social justice, discipleship and mission outreach 97 60 37
Ordinands' college costs 269 271 (2)
National Church - training for Ministry Vote 1 and pooling 522 518 4
Parish support; governance, pastoral, patronage & admin 303 265 38
Rural Hope 199 191 8
Church Buildings 183 186 (3)
Safeguarding 176 178 (2)
Registrar & Chancellorship and other professional fees 182 199 (17)
"SFB�PGmDFT 132 157 (25)
Milton Abbey 54 29 25
Supporting parish trusts 21 20 1
Fund raising costs (Note 8)
Glebe agents' fees and fund raising 83 113 (30)

2,927 2,915 12

Work with children and young people 336 330 6

Central costs and IT 
Central costs 603 583 20
Human Resources 87 79 8
Investment in IT 217 144 73
Governance 24 32 (8)

931 838 93

Other non parish-costs
National Church - central costs 542 559 (17)
Overseas missions (Sudans) 181 241 (60)
Share discount and provision 35 80 (45)
Interest payable 15 1 14

773 881 (108)

SDBF BC Ltd 233 208 25
Total expenditure 14,762 14,524 238

Illustration by: Becks Neale (right hand page)
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Income and expenditure year ended 31 December 2021
Operating deficit -£1.459m
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How the expenditure comes back to parishes  

Illustrations by: Becks Neale (double page spread)
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Overall movement in funds for 2021
7KH�RSHUDWLQJ�GHÀFLW�LV�RQO\�SDUW�RI�WKH�VWRU\
The year ended with an overall increase in funds
PG�KVTU�VOEFS�b�N

*movement cannot be relied on

The increase in funds for the year can mask the fact that we are RSHUDWLQJ�DW�D�VXEVWDQWLDO�GHÀFLW and 
indeed a substantial part of that increase is in the value of investments at the year-end – some of which 
has already been lost in 2022. 

%VSJOH������XF�IBWF�IBE�UP�USBOTGFS�b���N�GSPN�UIF�1BTUPSBM���%FWFMPQNFOU�'VOE�UP�UIF�(FOFSBM�'VOE�
to bolster cash reserves. This is an allowable use of funds, but given that the Pastoral & Development 
'VOE�JT�POMZ�WBMVFE�BU�b�N�BU�UIF�FOE�PG�����
�UIJT�TPSU�PG�USBOTGFS�JT�OPU�TVTUBJOBCMF�JO�UIF�MPOH�SVO��
This once again points to the need to HOLPLQDWH�WKH�RSHUDWLQJ�GHÀFLW by the end of 2025, and we are 
in the process of planning the 2023 budget and the three year plan 2023-2025 to achieve this. 

Welcome news from the Clergy Pensions Board drops the clergy pension contribution from 39.9% of 
national minimum stipends to 36% in April 2022 and to 28% in January 2023 which will certainly help   
to balance the books. 

0VS�DPTUT�BSF�MBSHFMZ�mYFE�VOMFTT�XF�ESPQ�TPNF�PG�UIF�TFSWJDFT�XF�PGGFS�UP�QBSJTIFT
�BOE�PVS�
dependency on parish’s ability and indeed willingness to pay share highlights the fragility of our 
mOBODJBM�TJUVBUJPO�
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Cash movement

Investment performance

Cash resource was deliberately increased in 2021 to ensure 
that there was enough cash to be able to meet bank loan 
SFQBZNFOUT�BOE�UP�CF�B�TVGmDJFOU�CVGGFS�JO�DBTF�4IBSF�
receipts did not meet the budget.

The DBF has the power to invest surplus funds in appropriate investments and to this end, principally 
makes use of the investment funds managed by CCLA and Sarasins. The DBF held investments in 
M&G at the beginning of the year. These were sold in the year due to poor performance in 2020 and the 
monies were reinvested in Sarasins Active Climate Endowment fund. This was chosen after an external 
review of our investments by an independent consultant and for its more environmentally friendly 
QPSUGPMJP��5IF�QFSGPSNBODF�PG�UIFTF�JOWFTUNFOUT�JT�TIPXO�CFMPX��.�(�MPTU�b���N�PG�JUT�WBMVF�JO������
CVU�SFDPWFSFE�b���L�JO�������5IF�UPUBM�QSPDFFET�PG�TBMF�XFSF�SF�JOWFTUFE��0G�UIF�b����N�JODSFBTF�JO�
WBMVF�JO������b���L�IBT�CFFO�MPTU�JO�UIF�UISFF�NPOUIT�UP�.BSDI�����
�TIPXJOH�UIBU�DPOUJOVBM�JODSFBTF�
in investments with fund managers cannot be relied on.

Investment return in the year Capital 
appreciation

Investment  
income

Capital 
appreciation

Investment  
income

£,000 £,000 % %
CCLA Investment Fund 1,485 300 14.38 2.9
CCLA Property Fund 326 114 14.26 5.0
Total CCLA 1,811 414

Bought and sold in year £,000 £,000

Sarasins Active Climate Endowment Fund 
(Purchased September 2021)

360 22

M&G Charifund
(Sold September 2021)

845 224

Illustration by: Becks Neale (this page)
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Custodian trusteeship 
5IF�USVTUFFT�BSF�DVTUPEJBO�USVTUFFT�GPS�USVTU�mOBODJBM�BTTFUT�XJUI�B�NBSLFU�WBMVF�PG�
BQQSPYJNBUFMZ�b��N�PO����%FDFNCFS������	�����b��N
��5IFTF�BTTFUT�BSF�IFME�GPS�
QBSJTIFT�JO�UIF�%JPDFTF�BOE�PUIFS�DIBSJUJFT�XIPTF�BSFB�PG�CFOFmU�JT�UIF�%JPDFTF�PG�
4BMJTCVSZ��$FSUJmDBUFT�EFUBJMJOH�BMM�IPMEJOHT�BOE�CBMBODFT�BT�BU����%FDFNCFS������
have been sent to parishes. The trustees are also custodian trustee for all parish real 
property. As custodian the trustees are responsible for the safe custody of all trust 
assets but does not control them. Trust assets are held separately from the assets of 
the DBF. 

Reserves policies 
The trustees have reserve policies for three of its Funds: 

Pastoral & Development Fund (DPA)
As this fund is often used principally to buy houses, the trustees’ policy is to have 
a reserve expressed in terms of the cost of six clergy houses. Based on recent 
FYQFSJFODF�BO�BWFSBHF�DPTU�PG�b���L�HJWFT�B�SFTFSWF�SFRVJSFNFOU�PG�b����N��
5IF�SFTFSWF�JT�EFmOFE�BT�UIF�GVOE�T�OFU�BTTFUT�FYDMVEJOH�UIF�BNPVOUT�IFME�BT�
UBOHJCMF�mYFE�BTTFUT
�MPBOT�HSBOUFE�UP�QBSJTIFT�BOE�DPNNJUNFOUT�HJWFO�GPS�
MPBOT��5IF�GVOE�IBT�JOWFTUNFOUT�PG�b���N�BOE�DBTI�PG�b���N�BU����%FDFNCFS�
2021 so reserves are fully adequate. 

General Fund
The trustees’ policy is to have a reserve equating to three months of expenditure 
at any one time to maintain working capital requirements and to provide 
BEFRVBUF�TBGFHVBSET�JO�SFTQFDU�PG�VOGPSFTFFO�EFmDJUT��"U���TU�%FDFNCFS������
the general fund free reserves include some readily realisable investments 
BNPVOUJOH�UP�b���N�BOE�DBTI�PG�b���N��5IJT�FRVBUFT�UP�PWFS�UISFF�NPOUIT�PG�
expenditure and the trustees consider that this is in line with its policy and better 
than reported a year ago. 
The trustees have procedures in place to monitor parish Share collection and 
any deviation from agreed budgets in the year. The net current assets of the 
general fund do not cover the Coronavirus bank loan, but repayment is over six 
ZFBST�BOE�UIFSFGPSF�UIF�USVTUFFT�DPOTJEFS�UIBU�UIFSF�XJMM�CF�TVGmDJFOU�MJRVJEJUZ�
each year to achieve repayment and if not, there are contingency plans in place 
by use of total return. 

Stipend Capital Fund
Adoption of total return was agreed in December 2021 to give more options 
for release of funds towards appropriate expenditure. The fund has been split 
into capital funds and unapplied total return. The policy governing drawdown 
of funds from unapplied total return has not yet been agreed by the trustees.        
No drawdowns have been made in 2021.
The full extent of the Covid pandemic is yet to be known, including its impact on 
PQFSBUJPOT�PWFS�UIF�GPSUIDPNJOH�ZFBST��5IF�USVTUFFT�BSF�DPOmEFOU�UIBU�UIF�$IBSJUZ�
is managing its free reserves on a sustainable basis in line with the above policy. 
However, this will continue to be assessed once the full longer-term implications 
of the pandemic are known.
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Where are we going?
Going Concern 
Despite the strong balance sheet, most of the funds are tied up in housing 
and subject to restrictions to their use. Continuing to run with an operating 
EFmDJU�JT�DMFBSMZ�VOTVTUBJOBCMF�CVU�UIF�USVTUFFT�BSF�PG�UIF�PQJOJPO�UIBU�UIFSF�
is an achievable plan to return to breakeven by 2025 based on:

• Increasing Share income to above pre-pandemic levels by 
helping parishes to increase their income with the support       
of the new Giving Advisor.

• %FWFMPQJOH�B�mOBODJBMMZ�TVTUBJOBCMF�QBUUFSO�PG�NJOJTUFSJBM�
deployment with a balance of stipendiary and non-stipendiary 
ministry based upon the Mission and Pastoral plan.

• Looking at other options to cutting stipendiary posts. 
• Continuing to exercise a tight control on costs. 
• Using total return to create options.
• Releasing further surplus housing for sale or rental. 
• Ongoing review of all assets to optimise returns and realise 

development and other opportunities.

Grant making policies
The trustees make a variety of grants to the clergy and parishes of the Diocese, 
the Archbishops’ Council and the Episcopal Church of the Sudan, all in 
furtherance of its charitable objects. 
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Total return
Adoption of Total Return in principle with regards to investments held in the 
endowment fund Stipend Capital Account was agreed by Bishop’s Council       
in 2021. 
Under the Diocesan Stipends Fund (Amendment) Measure S104b of Charities 
Act 2011 the Stipend Capital Fund may be split into capital funds and unapplied 
total return (UTR). 
The DBF is permitted to allocate monies from the unapplied total return element, 
TVDI�TVNT�BT�UIF�%#'�TFF�BQQSPQSJBUF�GPS�UIF�CFOFmU�PG�TUJQFOET�PS�
TUJQFOE�SFMBUFE�DPTUT�TVDI�BT�QFOTJPO�EFmDJUT�PS�NPEJGZJOH�QBSTPOBHFT�GPS����
Net Zero provided that the DBF exercises its statutory duty to be even-handed 
BT�CFUXFFO�QSFTFOU�BOE�GVUVSF�CFOFmDJBSJFT�BOE�UIBU�JU�NBJOUBJOT�JUT�VOBQQMJFE�
total return at a level to ensure it remains positive after having due regard to the 
volatility of the investment markets. 
The DBF’s objective is also to maintain the value of capital funds in real terms. 
Any monies drawn down from the pot of UTR are derived from the sale of 
assets, so the pot is not a magic money tree. Each sale of asset may lead to a 
potential loss of income, so decisions need to be carefully balanced. There 
is an element of ‘selling the family silver’ in using UTR. The amount of UTR has 
CFFO�DBMDVMBUFE�BT�b����N�SFQSFTFOUJOH�DBQJUBM�HBJOT�����������MFTT�JODSFBTF�
JO�$1*�EVSJOH�UIJT�QFSJPE��5IJT�EPFT�OPU�NFBO�b����N�JT�JNNFEJBUFMZ�BWBJMBCMF��
to spend. 
The maximum that can be drawn down any one year is the total cost of 
TUJQFOET�BOE�SFMBUFE�DPTUT�o�UIJT�JT�b���N�JO������TP�UIF�DBQ�JT�VOMJLFMZ�FWFS�
to be used. However, once this money is spent it is gone and therefore the 
trustees will exercise tight control of any expenditure from this source by means 
of tight policy control. It does however give options for reserving funds for       
worthwhile projects. 
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Risk management 
Salisbury Diocesan Board of Finance (DBF) is committed to maintaining a robust risk 
management framework, which complies with the Charity Commission’s regulatory and 
good practice requirements.
During 2021, DBF refreshed its risk management processes, including the adoption 
and implementation of a Risk Management Policy to outline risk management process 
stages, take a view on risk appetite, document roles and responsibilities of all parties 
involved, and outline risk reporting procedures. Risk management is an organisation-
wide function that is built into the culture of DBF. The approach is to involve all staff in 
SJTL�NBOBHFNFOU�BOE�GPTUFS�B�DVMUVSF�XIFSF�SJTLT�DBO�CF�JEFOUJmFE�BOE�FTDBMBUFE��
Management and staff meet regularly to review, discuss and report on risk, using 
the DBF risk register. The risk register is split between principal and all other risks to 
ensure a comprehensive but focussed approach, concentrating efforts on identifying, 
managing and monitoring the most important risks. The DBF leadership team discuss 
UIF�QSJODJQBM�SJTLT�PO�B�RVBSUFSMZ�CBTJT�BOE�EJTDVTT�UIFJS�SFnFDUJPOT�XJUI�UIF�"VEJU�BOE�
Risk Committee.
The DBF Directors review and satisfy themselves 6-monthly that risk management is 
embedded in the organisation and adequate systems are in place to monitor, manage 
and, where appropriate, mitigate exposure to key risks. The Audit and Risk Committee 
BTTJTUT�UIF�%#'�USVTUFFT�UP�GVMmM�UIFJS�SFTQPOTJCJMJUJFT�BOE�NPOJUPST�UIF�FGGFDUJWFOFTT�
of the risk management framework and associated aspects on a quarterly basis. The 
committee provides a level of independent scrutiny and comprise of members with 
relevant knowledge and experience.

7KH�PDLQ�ULVNV�LGHQWLÀHG�DUH�
1. A lack of Diocesan vision, engagement, planning and agreed priorities
2. $�VLJQLÀFDQW�ORVV�RI�SDULVK�6KDUH�DQG�RWKHU�IRUPV�RI�LQFRPH
3. 6LJQLÀFDQW�'%)�HPSOR\PHQW�LVVXHV
4. Safeguarding
5. Poor IT infrastructure, planning and implementation

1. $�ODFN�RI�'LRFHVDQ�YLVLRQ��HQJDJHPHQW��SODQQLQJ�DQG�DJUHHG�SULRULWLHV�   
During the second half of 2021 as we awaited a new Diocesan bishop, the Diocese 
BOE�%#'�CFOFmUFE�GSPN�UIF�XFMM�SFTQFDUFE�MFBEFSTIJQ�PG�UIF�"DUJOH�#JTIPQ�PG�
Salisbury and the Suffragan Bishop of Ramsbury with continued focus on the 
Diocesan priorities for growth which had been agreed by the Diocesan Synod in 
February 2020.

      0LWLJDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�LQFOXGH�
• Developing strategic thinking and linking this to detailed planning.

• Development of a mission and pastoral plan and using that as a framework 
for further discussion of changes to stipendiary clergy deployment in the 
context of mission and ministry as a whole.

• Aligning the mission and pastoral plan, priorities and associated funding 
XJUI�UIF�mWF�ZFBS�mOBODJBM�GSBNFXPSL�

• Identifying further ministry resources expressed in lay leadership and 
continuing discussion around the future shape and expression of local 
mission and ministry. 
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2. 6LJQLÀFDQW�ORVV�RI�SDULVK�6KDUH�DQG�RWKHU�IRUPV�RI�LQFRPH���
      0LWLJDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�LQFOXGH�

•� .POUIMZ�mOBODJBM�NPOJUPSJOH�BOE�SFQPSUJOH�PG�4IBSF�SFDFJQUT��*ODSFBTFE�
DPNNVOJDBUJPO�BOE�JOGPSNBUJPO�PO�%#'�mOBODFT�UISPVHI�NFFUJOHT
�
mOBODJBM�OFXTMFUUFST�BOE�PO�UIF�%JPDFTBO�XFCTJUF
�IBT�SBJTFE�BXBSFOFTT�
BOE�VOEFSTUBOEJOH�PG�UIF�mOBODJBM�DIBMMFOHFT�BOE�PQQPSUVOJUJFT�GBDJOH�UIF�
DBF and the importance and impact of paying / not paying parish Share.

• A Diocesan-wide ‘Generous Giving Campaign’ 12 September to 3 October 
2021, equipping every church to actively engage their congregation on 
the topic of giving and generosity and encourage those who can increase 
their giving.

• Sale and development of glebe.

• Preparation for the adoption of Total Return approach.

• Recruitment of a Giving Advisor (funded by the National Church) 
TVQQPSUJOH�QBSJTIFT�UP�EFWFMPQ���NBJOUBJO�MPOH�UFSN�mOBODJBM�TVTUBJOBCJMJUZ�

• A full provision is made for Share arrears.

• The DBF is running at an unsustainable operating loss and actions 
BSF�CFJOH�UBLF�JO�XJUIJO�UIF�mWF�ZFBS�mOBODJBM�GSBNFXPSL�TVQQPSUFE�CZ�
%JPDFTBO�4ZOPE�UP�FMJNJOBUF�UIF�EFmDJU�

3. 6LJQLÀFDQW�'%)�HPSOR\PHQW�LVVXHV��The organisation has gone through 
TJHOJmDBOU�TUBGG�BOE�XPSLJOH�QSBDUJDF�DIBOHFT�BT�B�SFTVMU�PG�UIF�QBOEFNJD
�BO�
PSHBOJTBUJPO�XJEF�SFTUSVDUVSF�JO������BOE�GVSUIFS�GVODUJPO�TQFDJmD�SFTUSVDUVSFT�JO�
2021. DBF carried several vacancies during the year because of these changes 
as well as unsuccessful recruitment campaigns.  

      0LWLJDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�LQFOXGH�
• A consultative approach to role restructuring in according with the 

‘Organisational Change Policy’.

• Use of agency staff to assist with short-term capacity issues and to 
ensure the continued delivery of core services and activities.

• Launch of ‘Employee hub’ on the intranet, providing staff with access 
to wellbeing resources and guidance.

• Recruitment process review and improvement by external experts, 
including the launch of ‘careers micro-website’ to attract candidates.

• With the ease of lockdown rules, a renewed focus on in-person / virtual 
connection and engagement opportunities at all levels:

      all staff meetings, regular team meetings, monthly line Manager forum, 
weekly ‘Virtual Coffee’.

• Continued investment in staff training and development, in particular 
IT skills, management training and a review and refresh of ‘contribution 
conversation’ framework.
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4. 6DIHJXDUGLQJ� 
������0LWLJDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�LQFOXGH��
      %#'�IBT�4BGFHVBSEJOH�0GmDFST�JO�QMBDF�BOE�B�%JPDFTBO�4BGFHVBSEJOH�

"EWJTPSZ�1BOFM��5IF�PGmDFST�BOE�UIF�QBOFM�SFWJFX�BMM�QSPDFTTFT�BOE�
procedures, as well as coordinate training consistent with National 
Church guidance and procedure. The Diocese also participates in a 
National Church audit scheme as a founding member of the process. 
DBF is working in partnership with external services to support survivors           
and victims.

5. 3RRU�,7�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH��SODQQLQJ�DQG�LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ� the pandemic 
helpfully precipitated the adoption of more digital ways of working 
but these represent wide ranging and fast change for a staff team 
without prior experience in most systems. The rollout of the Diocesan IT 
programme during 2020-21, has been the single biggest IT investment 
	b���L
�BOE�USBOTGPSNBUJPO�FYQFSJFODFE�CZ�UIF�PSHBOJTBUJPO�UP�EBUF��
implementing more than 15 new systems and applications.  

      0LWLJDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�WR�UHGXFH�WKH�QHJDWLYH�LPSDFW�RI�FKDQJH�LQFOXGH�
•� 3PMMPVU�PG�.JDSPTPGU�0GmDF����
�4IBSF1PJOU�BOE�PUIFS�DMPVE�CBTFE�

IT systems to ensure business continuity and enabling the Diocese 
to serve churches and schools in their local environment and 
context. 

• Effective IT programme governance, including dedicated 
programme resourcing – a programme coordinator and IT trainer.

• Investment in IT training for staff and the launch of the ‘IT Learning 
Curve’ a resource of user guidance and succinct training videos.

• Adoption of national systems enabling the Diocese to move forward 
as an active part of a developing and modernising Church of 
England. Join IT consortiums (e.g. DC2/Church Edit website) to 
CFOFmU�GSPN�TIBSFE�BOE�DPMMFDUJWF�JOWFTUNFOU
�LOPXMFEHF�BOE�
expertise, whilst reducing our systems/IT dependencies from small 
companies that pose a high risk around key person dependency. 

•� 3FDSVJUNFOU�PG�BO�*5�4VQQPSU�0GmDFS�UP�NBYJNJTF�UIF�CFOFmUT�GSPN�
the investment in IT, explore opportunities of system integration and 
partnering with other Dioceses and review and improve IT policies 
and procedures.
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Governance and Trustees
Directors and Trustees during 2021
The members of Bishop’s Council are the Executive Committee 
of the DBF and its directors and trustees.
The members of Salisbury Diocesan Synod are the members  
of the DBF. 

The following are the directors and trustees who served during 
�����DQG�XS�WR�WKH�GDWH�RI�VLJQLQJ�WKH�UHSRUW�

5IF�3U�3FWE�/�)PMUBN� � � &Y�PGmDJP
�1SFTJEFOU�PG�4ZOPE
�#JTIPQ�PG�4BMJTCVSZ�	SFTJHOFE�+VMZ�����

5IF�3U�3FWE�,�(PSIBN��� � &Y�PGmDJP
�#JTIPQ�PG�4IFSCPSOF�BOE�BDUJOH�#JTIPQ�PG�4BMJTCVSZ���
     and President of Synod from July 2021
The Rt Revd S Lake   Bishop of Salisbury from April 2022
.S�/�4BMJTCVSZ� � � � &Y�PGmDJP
�$IBJS
5IF�3U�3FW�%S�"�3VNTFZ� � &Y�PGmDJP
�#JTIPQ�PG�3BNTCVSZ
5IF�7FSZ�3FW�/�1BQBEPQVMPT� � &Y�PGmDJP
�%FBO�PG�4BMJTCVSZ�$BUIFESBM
5IF�7FO�"�1�+FBOT� � � &Y�PGmDJP
�"SDIEFBDPO�PG�4BSVN�
5IF�7FO�1�4BZFS� � � &Y�PGmDJP
�"SDIEFBDPO�PG�4IFSCPSOF
5IF�7FO�4�(SPPN� � � &Y�PGmDJP
�"SDIEFBDPO�PG�8JMUT
5IF�7FO�"�$�.BD3PX�8PPE�� � &Y�PGmDJP
�"SDIEFBDPO�PG�%PSTFU
� � � � � &Y�PGmDJP
�$IBJS�%JPDFTBO�#PBSE�PG�&EVDBUJPO
5IF�3FW�-�$PPL�� � � &Y�PGmDJP
�$IBJS�)PVTF�PG�$MFSHZ�	SFTJHOFE�4FQUFNCFS�����

$BOPO�"�1FSSZ� � � � &Y�PGmDJP
�$IBJS�)PVTF�PG�$MFSHZ�	GSPN�4FQUFNCFS�����

Canon D Baldwin   Elected clerical member
Canon G Osborne    Elected clerical member (from September 2021)
Canon L Holt    Elected clerical member (from October 2021)
.ST�(�$MBSLF� � � � &MFDUFE�MBZ�NFNCFS�BOE�&Y�PGmDJP�$IBJS�)PVTF�PG�-BJUZ�
Mrs D McIsaac    Elected lay member
Mrs R Cook     Elected lay member
Mr D Howshall    Elected lay member
Mrs J Jackson    Elected lay member
Mr R Chitty    Elected lay member
Mrs S Stevens    Elected lay member (from September 2021)
Lady S Gooch    Elected lay member (from September 2021)
Mr S Waite     Elected lay member (from September 2021)
Mrs E J McCormick    Co-opted lay member (from September 2021)
Canon J Curtis    Co-opted clerical member (from December 2021)
Mrs M Morrissey   Elected lay member (resigned September 2021)
Mrs E Oderstone   Elected lay member (resigned September 2021)

3ULQFLSDO�2IÀFHUV�RI�WKH�'%)��
Mr N Salisbury     Chair of the DBF 
Mr D Pain    Secretary and Treasurer
Ms E Ashmead    Director of Finance and Asset management 

*O�BQQSPWJOH�UIJT�5SVTUFFT��3FQPSU
�UIF�USVTUFFT�BSF�BMTP�BQQSPWJOH�UIF�QVSQPTFT�BOE�BTQJSBUJPOT�JEFOUJmFE�PO�
pages 6-7 — within their capacity as company directors.
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7UXVWHHV·�5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV
5IF�USVTUFFT�BSF�SFTQPOTJCMF�GPS�QSFQBSJOH�UIF�"OOVBM�3FQPSU�BOE�UIF�mOBODJBM�
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. 

$PNQBOZ�MBX�SFRVJSFT�UIF�USVTUFFT�	BT�%JSFDUPST
�UP�QSFQBSF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�
GPS�FBDI�mOBODJBM�ZFBS��6OEFS�UIBU�MBX�UIF�USVTUFFT�IBWF�FMFDUFE�UP�QSFQBSF�UIF�
mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�JO�BDDPSEBODF�XJUI�6OJUFE�,JOHEPN�(FOFSBMMZ�"DDFQUFE�
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). 
6OEFS�DPNQBOZ�MBX�UIF�USVTUFFT�NVTU�OPU�BQQSPWF�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�VOMFTT�
UIFZ�BSF�TBUJTmFE�UIBU�UIFZ�HJWF�B�USVF�BOE�GBJS�WJFX�PG�UIF�TUBUF�PG�UIF�BGGBJST�PG�
UIF�%#'�BOE�PG�UIF�TVSQMVT�PS�EFmDJU�PG�UIF�%#'�GPS�UIBU�QFSJPE��*O�QSFQBSJOH�UIFTF�
mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�UIF�USVTUFFT�BSF�SFRVJSFE�UP��
• Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently. 

• Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent. 

• Follow applicable accounting standards and the Charities SORP FRS102, 
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the        
mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT��

•� "TTFTT�XIFUIFS�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�DBO�CF�QSFQBSFE�PO�B�HPJOH�DPODFSO�
basis with adequate disclosure outlining their reasons for doing so. 

The trustees are also responsible for keeping proper accounting records that 
EJTDMPTF�XJUI�SFBTPOBCMF�BDDVSBDZ�BU�BOZ�UJNF�UIF�mOBODJBM�QPTJUJPO�PG�UIF�
%#'�BOE�FOBCMF�UIFN�UP�FOTVSF�UIBU�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�DPNQMZ�XJUI�UIF�
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the 
DBF and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of 
fraud and other irregularities. 

Statement of disclosure to the auditors 
So far as the trustees are aware: there is no relevant audit information of which 
the charitable company’s auditors are unaware, and we have taken all the steps 
that we ought to have taken as trustees in order to make ourselves aware of any 
relevant audit information and to establish that the charitable company’s auditors 
are aware of that information. 
A resolution to reappoint Haysmacintyre LLP will be proposed at the            
Annual General Meeting in June 2022.
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Reference and Administrative Details

3FHJTUFSFE�0GmDF�� � � $IVSDI�)PVTF
     Crane Street
     Salisbury SP1 2QB

Website:    www.salisbury.anglican.org

Company Registration Number: 17442 (in England and Wales)

Charity Registration Number:  240833

Auditors:    Haysmacintyre LLP
     10 Queen St Place, London EC4R 1AG

Solicitors:    Wilsons LLP, Alexandra House,
     St Johns St, Salisbury SP1 2SB   

Diocesan Registrar:   Batt Broadbent, Minster Chambers, 
     42/44 Castle Street, Salisbury SP1 3TX

Bankers:    Lloyds PLC, 38 Blue Boar Row,
     Salisbury SP1 1DB

*OTVSFST�� � � � &DDMFTJBTUJDBM�*OTVSBODF�0GmDF�QMD
�#FBVGPSU�)PVTF

     Brunswick Road, Gloucester GL1 1JZ

Investment Managers:  CCLA Investment Management Ltd, Senator House, 
     85 Queen Victoria Street, London EC4V 4ET

M&G Investment Management Ltd M&G House, Victoria Road,
     Chelmsford CM1 1FB

Sarasin & Partners    Juxon House, 100 St Paul’s Churchyard
     London EC4M 8BU

Glebe Property & Land Agents: Strutt & Parker, 41 Milford Street,
     Salisbury SP1 2BP
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Meetings of Principal Committees
The Diocesan Synod 
The Diocesan Synod is the statutory governing body of a Diocese. Its members 
are also the members of the Diocesan Board of Finance (DBF). It is elected with 
representation from all parts of the Diocese and roughly equal numbers of clergy    
and lay people, who meet together in Synod with the Bishops and other senior clergy. 

The role of Diocesan Synod is to consider matters concerning the Church of England 
and make provision for such matters in relation to the Diocese; to act as a forum for 
discussion of Christian opinion on any matter (religious or public interest); to advise 
the Bishop on any matter on which he may consult it; to deal with matters referred by 
General Synod and to refer matters to the General Synod; and to make provision for 
UIF�mOBODJOH�PG�UIF�%JPDFTF�BT�UIF�%#'�
Synod met four times in 2021 in February, June, September, and November. As well 
BT�GVMmMMJOH�JUT�GVODUJPO�BT�UIF�%#'
�UIF�NBJO�BSFBT�PG�CVTJOFTT�JODMVEFE�

%LVKRS·V�&RXQFLO

• The AGM of the DBF including adoption of the Report and Accounts, 
approval of the appointment of Haysmacintyre as the auditors for the 
DBF and agreement of the 2022 budget.

• Identifying Diocesan priorities and continuing discussions around 
UIF�mWF�ZFBS�mOBODJBM�GSBNFXPSL�BJNFE�BU�FMJNJOBUJOH�UIF�PQFSBUJPOBM�
EFmDJU�BOE�UIF�'BJSFS�4IBSF�TDIFNF�NFDIBOJTN�

•� %FWFMPQJOH�B�.JTTJPO�BOE�1BTUPSBM�1MBO�UP�BMJHO�XJUI�UIF�mOBODJBM�
framework and the Fairer Share scheme.

• Introduction to the Principles of Living in Love and Faith.

• Approval of revisions to the Functions, Constitution and Standing 
Orders for Salisbury Diocesan Synod to update in line with National 
legislation and to make provision for the Channel Islands joining     
the Diocese.

• Receiving annual reports from the DBE and the Cathedral.

• Discussing and approving the new DBE Scheme in response to the 
national DBE Measure 2021.

• Supporting and encouraging Diocesan efforts to achieve                
Net Zero by 2030.
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The Bishop’s Council is the Standing Committee of the Diocesan Synod,           
the Executive Committee of the DBF and the Diocesan Mission and Pastoral 
Committee. Its members are the trustees of the DBF. It met nine times in 2021 
and the main areas of business included:

• 0OHPJOH�TDSVUJOZ�PG�mOBODF
�NJTTJPO
�BOE�QBTUPSBM�NBUUFST�
• $POUJOVJOH�EJTDVTTJPO�BSPVOE�%JPDFTBO�QSJPSJUJFT�BOE�UIF�mWF�ZFBS�

mOBODJBM�GSBNFXPSL�UP�FMJNJOBUF�UIF�PQFSBUJPOBM�EFmDJU
�B�1BTUPSBM�
1MBO�UP�BMJHO�XJUI�UIF�mOBODJBM�GSBNFXPSL�BOE�UIF�'BJSFS�4IBSF�
scheme mechanism.

• Continuing discussions around the repercussions of Coronavirus.
• Approving the Report and Accounts for year ending 31 December 

2020 and budget 2022 for presentation to Synod; receiving the 
auditor’s report.

• Receiving the From Lament to Action report; welcoming and 
endorsing the recommendations.

• Approving continuing work relating to the Channel Islands’ move to 
become attached to the Diocese of Salisbury.

• &OEPSTJOH�SFDPNNFOEBUJPOT�SFTVMUJOH�GSPN�B�iMJHIU�UPVDIw�
governance review.

• Considering matters brought by the Audit and Risk Committee.
• Considering a Property Strategy.
• The January two-day meeting was a partial joint meeting with the 

DBE to consider matters of shared interest including opportunities 
for developing Diocesan work within the National Vision                
and Strategy.

• Approved the adoption of Total Return in principle.

The Diocesan Board of Finance
The DBF held its annual general meeting in September as part of the Diocesan 
Synod. The Finance Committee met eleven times in 2021. The trustees carried 
out regular analysis of income and expenditure, risks, reserves, loans and 
investments, trusts, property and staff. In addition, they:

• Approved Report and Accounts for year ending 31 December 2020 
and received the auditor’s report.

• Approved Budget 2022 and the revised Budget Guide.
• Discussed and agreed fairer Share matters arising.
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The Environment Group
This Group supports parishes, the Diocese, and individuals in developing 
environmental awareness and action across the Diocese. Activities in 2021 included:

• Encouraging wider adoption of the Eco Church scheme and reviewing 
new Eco Diocese criteria with a view to achieving Silver status.

• Supporting a growing network of local Eco Champions, providing 
newsletters, social media updates, training and opportunities for online 
advice sessions.

• Communicating and educating the parishes towards their responsibilities 
to care for God’s wonderful creation.

• Supporting the Diocesan Net Zero Task Force in its work towards the 
Diocese’s aim to achieve carbon neutrality by 2030 (as agreed by the 
General Synod).

Salisbury Diocesan Mission and Pastoral Committee
The Bishop’s Council is the Diocesan Mission and Pastoral committee for the 
Diocese of Salisbury and the four archidiaconal mission and pastoral committees 
(ADMPCs) act as its sub-committees, chaired by their respective Area Archdeacon. 
Archdeacons, Rural Deans, Deanery Lay Chairmen, and three members nominated 
CZ�#JTIPQ�T�$PVODJM
�BSF�BMM�FY�PGmDJP�NFNCFST��3VSBM�BOE�&DVNFOJDBM�PGmDFST
�
"TTJTUBOU�3VSBM�%FBOT
�BOE�3VSBM�'JFME�0GmDFST�BSF�BMTP�JOWJUFE�UP�BUUFOE�NFFUJOHT���
The ADMCPs share joint meetings with the two area Mission Oversight Groups 
(MOGs) led by the Bishop of Ramsbury and the Bishop of Sherborne. The ADMPCs 
deal with pastoral matters in their area including noting all clergy vacancies and 
appointments, parish re-organisation, suspensions of presentation, boundary 
changes, deanery and presence mapping, clergy deployment and strategic planning 
through their deanery plans. 
The committees met on-line via Zoom throughout 2021 and focussed on addressing 
issues for mission and ministry raised by the pandemic, on the Diocesan budget 
and clergy deployment. Each archidiaconal committee had been asked to look at 
reducing clergy posts and to consider how best to achieve savings to achieve the 
budget set by Diocesan Synod. Pastoral consultations re-commenced but with longer 
periods allowed for consultation and a more rigorous discussion phase to ensure 
parishes were well informed. Covid led to a reduction of pastoral schemes but a 
much greater interest in exploring opportunities for uniting parishes, recognising that 
JU�JT�NVDI�IBSEFS�UP�mOE�1$$�TFDSFUBSJFT
�USFBTVSFST�BOE�DIVSDIXBSEFOT�BOE�MPPLJOH�
at ways of simplifying administration and reducing the workload for clergy.

•� 3DVWRUDO�6FKHPHV�DQG�2UGHUV��%VF�UP�POHPJOH�EJGmDVMUZ�DBVTFE�CZ�$PWJE����
restrictions, it was only possible to bring one scheme into effect. 

•� 6W�$OGKHOP�%HQHÀFH� A scheme which united three of the seven parishes in the 
CFOFmDF�UP�GPSN�UIF�4U�"MEIFMN�QBSJTI�DBNF�JOUP�FGGFDU�PO���0DUPCFS�������

• A scheme for The Union of the Gussage Parishes and their transfer from 
WKH�&KDVH�EHQHÀFH�LQWR�WKH�&UDQERUQH�ZLWK�%RYHULGJH��(GPRQGVKDP�DQG�
:LPERUQH�6W�*LOHV�EHQHÀFH�DQG�D�VFKHPH�WR�'LVVROYH�WKH�%ULGJH�EHQHÀFH�
and move the parishes into Wimborne Minster and the Wimborne Villages 
EHQHÀFH�DQG�LQWR�WKH�5HG�3RVW�EHQHÀFH received representations which went 
before the Church Commissioners review panel in November 2021. Although they 
dismissed the representations, the representors are allowed time for appeal, and 
the outcome of both of these schemes will not be known until 2022. 
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•� 3RWHQWLDO�3DVWRUDO�&KDQJHV�XQGHU�GLVFXVVLRQ��
•� 1SPQPTBMT�UP�EJTTPMWF�UIF�CFOFmDF�PG�Chickerell with Fleet and move 

UIF�QBSJTIFT�JOUP�BEKBDFOU�CFOFmDFT�IBWF�VOEFSHPOF�QSFMJNJOBSZ�
consultations and will come back to the Sherborne ADMCP in      
February 2022.

•� 1SPQPTBMT�UP�GPSN�B�(SPVQ�.JOJTUSZ�CFUXFFO�UIF�CFOFmDFT�PG�Hazelbury 
Bryan and the Hillside Parishes, Marnhull and Spire Hill are 
currently under discussion and will go forward to the Sherborne ADMPC               
in February.

• A pastoral scheme is currently being drafted to unite the parishes of 
Atworth and Shaw and Whitley JO�UIF�CFOFmDF�PG�"UXPSUI�XJUI�4IBX�
and Whitley and will go to the next Wilts ADMPC meeting in March 2022.

•� "�#JTIPQT�0SEFS�UP�DIBOHF�UIF�OBNF�PG�UIF�CFOFmDF�PG�Hampreston to 
Hampreston and Ferndown has already been approved by the Dorset 
ADMPC but is currently being discussed by the parishes.

• In Cannings and Redhorn�CFOFmDF�UIF�DIVSDI�PG�.BSEFO�"MM�4BJOUT�
IBE�CFFO�DPOTJEFSJOH�DIVSDI�DMPTVSF
�CVU�UIJT�JT�PO�IPME�BT�UIF�CFOFmDF�
explores the possibility of becoming a festival church.   

• The Upper Kennet�CFOFmDF�IBT�GPS�TPNF�UJNF�CFFO�FYQMPSJOH�UIF�
possibility of some or all of its parishes uniting, and discussions           
are ongoing.

• In the Chalke Valley�CFOFmDF�UIF�DIVSDI�PG�$IBSMUPO�"MM�4BJOUT�JT�MPPLJOH�
at potential future uses and possibly sharing part of the building with a 
village hall committee who might lease part of the building.  

•� %HQHÀFHV�LQ�ZKLFK�3UHVHQWDWLRQ�LV�6XVSHQGHG���
•� 0O����%FDFNCFS������UIFSF�XFSF�B�UPUBM�PG����TVTQFOEFE�CFOFmDFT���
•� 5IF�GPMMPXJOH�CFOFmDFT�SFNBJO�VOEFS�TVTQFOTJPO�XIJMTU�QBTUPSBM�

proposals are being considered: Chase; Pimperne, Stourpaine, 
Durweston and Bryanston; Sixpenny Handley with Gussage St Andrew 
and Pentridge; Spetisbury with Charlton Marshall and Blandford St Mary; 
Mere with West Knoyle and Maiden Bradley; Upper Stour; Amesbury; 
Hazelbury Bryan and the Hillside Parishes; Marnhull; Abbotsbury 
Portesham and Langton Herring. 

•� "�POF�ZFBS�#JTIPQ�T�TVTQFOTJPO�0SEFS�XBT�NBEF�JO�UIF�CFOFmDFT�PG�
Branksome St Clement; Okeford; Watercombe; Chickerell with Fleet to 
allow a short period of pastoral planning to take place; these may need 
UP�CF�FYUFOEFE�UP�B�mWF�ZFBS�TVTQFOTJPO�CFGPSF�UIFZ�FYQJSF�JO�������
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• Salisbury Diocesan Board of Patronage
&Y�PGmDJP�NFNCFST�PG�UIF�#PBSE�PG�1BUSPOBHF�BSF�UIF�#JTIPQ�PG�4BMJTCVSZ
�
The Bishop of Sherborne, the Bishop of Ramsbury, the Archdeacons of 
Wilts, Sarum, Sherborne and Dorset, and elected members are Mr Perry 
Chadwyck-Healey (Chairman), Lady Sarah Gooch, Mrs Margaret Morrissey, 
Mr Andrew Curtis, Dr John Waldsax, Revd Sarah Pix and Revd Sarah 
Hillman, with a vacancy for one member of the clergy.
In November 2021 Mr Perry Chadwyck-Healey, chairman for over nine 
years, announced he would be standing down and a new Chair will be 
elected at the Annual meeting in February 2022.
In December 2021 the Bishop’s Council, acting on behalf of the Diocesan 
Synod, elected two new members to the Board: Revd Mark Windsor and 
Mrs Sarah Beach. Members stand for a term of six years which started on 
1st January 2019 and will be eligible for re-election.  
5IF�DPNNJUUFF�NFNCFST�BSF�QBUSPOT�UP����CFOFmDFT��UIFZ�BSF�TPMF�QBUSPO�
JO�UIF�UISFF�CFOFmDFT�BOE�TIBSF�QBUSPOBHF�SJHIUT�JO�UIF�PUIFS����CFOFmDFT��
The Board’s primary task is to help during the appointment process to 
mOE�HPPE�BOE�RVBMJmFE�DMFSHZ
�TVJUBCMF�GPS�BQQPJOUNFOU�UP�UIF�CFOFmDF��
Members review new and pending vacancies, receive reports from the 
appointed link representatives, consider pastoral proposals and note any 
TVTQFOTJPOT�PG�QSFTFOUBUJPO��.FNCFST�BSF�OPUJmFE�PG�TIPSUMJTUJOH�BOE�
JOUFSWJFX�EBUFT�CZ�UIF�"SFB�0GmDFT�GPS�BMM�SFMFWBOU�WBDBODJFT��
The Committee met for its Annual Meeting on 27 January 2021. In between 
NFFUJOHT�UIF�1BUSPOBHF�4FDSFUBSZ�OPUJmFT�NFNCFST�PG�BMM�SFMFWBOU�NBUUFST�
CZ�FNBJM�PS�QIPOF�BOE�TFOET�QFSJPEJD�VQEBUFT��5IF�"SFB�PGmDFT�BOE�
Archdeacons notify members when a vacancy arises and then liaise 
directly with them throughout the appointment process. Members act 
on behalf of the Board with the aim of supporting the parish during the 
appointment process, but do not generally give a strong view unless asked 
by the parishes they represent to do so. In 2021 members have been 
JOWPMWFE�XJUI�JOUFSWJFXT�JO�UIF�CFOFmDFT�PG�.FMLTIBN
�4U�#BSUIPMPNFX
�
Savernake, and Shaftesbury.  
In Summer 2021, the Secretary of the Board announced her retirement and 
following structural changes to the governance structures in the Diocesan 
PGmDF
�.ST�.JSJBN�-POHGPPU�XBT�BQQPJOUFE�4FDSFUBSZ�JO�%FDFNCFS�������
She will be supported in this role by Ms Anne Jensen who will act as her 
administrative assistant. 

Diocesan Advisory Committee (DAC)
The Diocesan Advisory Committee for the Care of Churches is a statutory body that 
exists to support parishes in the care and development of their church buildings, 
and to advise the Diocesan Chancellor and Archdeacons on all Faculty or List B 
Applications. Members of the Committee serve a six year term with the current 
membership having been appointed/re-appointed by Bishop’s Council in 2021.
During 2021 the DAC discussed 158 applications with approximately 70% progressing. 
This is a higher progression rate than the previous year due, in part, to better-quality 
applications because of the outreach and work of the Church Buildings Team. The 
DAC enacted the use of Delegated Authority, which meant that faculty applications that 
IBWF�NJOPS�JNQBDUT�UP�UIF�TJHOJmDBODF�PG�UIF�CVJMEJOH�DPVME�CF�EFBMU�XJUI�XJUIPVU�UIF�
need to go to the full meeting. This helped to reduce the completion time of relevant 
applications enabling works to be carried out more swiftly. In addition, the number of 
meetings was increased from six to eight to further improve the application process 
and better serve the parishes.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members 
of the Salisbury Diocesan Board of Finance
Opinion
8F�IBWF�BVEJUFE�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�PG�UIF�4BMJTCVSZ�%JPDFTBO�#PBSE�PG�'JOBODF
for the year ended 31 December 2021 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities,
the Income and Expenditure Account, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and 
OPUFT�UP�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT
�JODMVEJOH�B�TVNNBSZ�PG�TJHOJmDBOU�BDDPVOUJOH�QPMJDJFT��
5IF�mOBODJBM�SFQPSUJOH�GSBNFXPSL�UIBU�IBT�CFFO�BQQMJFE�JO�UIFJS�QSFQBSBUJPO�JT�BQQMJDBCMF�
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 
The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

*O�PVS�PQJOJPO
�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�
• give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company’s affairs as at                                    

31 December 2021 and of the charitable company’s net movement in funds,                        
      including the income and expenditure, for the year then ended;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom                                         

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the                                             

Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) 
and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
SFTQPOTJCJMJUJFT�GPS�UIF�BVEJU�PG�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�TFDUJPO�PG�PVS�SFQPSU��8F�BSF�JOEFQFOEFOU�PG�
UIF�DIBSJUZ�JO�BDDPSEBODF�XJUI�UIF�FUIJDBM�SFRVJSFNFOUT�UIBU�BSF�SFMFWBOU�UP�PVS�BVEJU�PG�UIF�mOBODJBM�
TUBUFNFOUT�JO�UIF�6,
�JODMVEJOH�UIF�'3$�T�&UIJDBM�4UBOEBSE
�BOE�XF�IBWF�GVMmMMFE�PVS�PUIFS�FUIJDBM�
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
PCUBJOFE�JT�TVGmDJFOU�BOE�BQQSPQSJBUF�UP�QSPWJEF�B�CBTJT�GPS�PVS�PQJOJPO�

Conclusions relating to going concern
*O�BVEJUJOH�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT
�XF�IBWF�DPODMVEFE�UIBU�UIF�USVTUFFT��VTF�PG�UIF�HPJOH�DPODFSO�
CBTJT�PG�BDDPVOUJOH�JO�UIF�QSFQBSBUJPO�PG�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�JT�BQQSPQSJBUF��
#BTFE�PO�UIF�XPSL�XF�IBWF�QFSGPSNFE
�XF�IBWF�OPU�JEFOUJmFE�BOZ�NBUFSJBM�VODFSUBJOUJFT�SFMBUJOH�UP�
FWFOUT�PS�DPOEJUJPOT�UIBU
�JOEJWJEVBMMZ�PS�DPMMFDUJWFMZ
�NBZ�DBTU�TJHOJmDBOU�EPVCU�PO�UIF�DIBSJUBCMF�
company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the 
mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�BSF�BVUIPSJTFE�GPS�JTTVF��
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described 
in the relevant sections of this report. 

Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
JODMVEFE�JO�UIF�5SVTUFF�T�3FQPSU��0VS�PQJOJPO�PO�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�EPFT�OPU�DPWFS�UIF�PUIFS�
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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*O�DPOOFDUJPO�XJUI�PVS�BVEJU�PG�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT
�PVS�SFTQPOTJCJMJUZ�JT�UP�SFBE�UIF�PUIFS�
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�PS�PVS�LOPXMFEHF�PCUBJOFE�JO�UIF�BVEJU�PS�PUIFSXJTF�BQQFBST�UP�CF�NBUFSJBMMZ�
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are 
SFRVJSFE�UP�EFUFSNJOF�XIFUIFS�UIFSF�JT�B�NBUFSJBM�NJTTUBUFNFOU�JO�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�PS�B�NBUFSJBM�
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 
to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
• the information given in the Trustees’ Report (which includes the strategic report and the directors’ 

SFQPSU�QSFQBSFE�GPS�UIF�QVSQPTFT�PG�DPNQBOZ�MBX
�GPS�UIF�mOBODJBM�ZFBS�GPS�XIJDI�UIF�mOBODJBM�
TUBUFNFOUT�BSF�QSFQBSFE�JT�DPOTJTUFOU�XJUI�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT��BOE

• the strategic report and the directors’ report included within the Trustees’ Report have been 
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment 
PCUBJOFE�JO�UIF�DPVSTF�PG�UIF�BVEJU
�XF�IBWF�OPU�JEFOUJmFE�NBUFSJBM�NJTTUBUFNFOUT�JO�UIF�5SVTUFFT��
Report (which incorporates the strategic report and the directors’ report).
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the charitable company; or
•� UIF�DIBSJUBCMF�DPNQBOZ�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�BSF�OPU�JO�BHSFFNFOU�XJUI�UIF�BDDPVOUJOH�SFDPSET�BOE�

returns; or
•� DFSUBJO�EJTDMPTVSFT�PG�USVTUFFT��SFNVOFSBUJPO�TQFDJmFE�CZ�MBX�BSF�OPU�NBEF��PS
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�RI�WUXVWHHV�IRU�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV
As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities statement set out on page 36, the trustees (who 
are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for 
UIF�QSFQBSBUJPO�PG�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�BOE�GPS�CFJOH�TBUJTmFE�UIBU�UIFZ�HJWF�B�USVF�BOE�GBJS�WJFX
�BOE�
GPS�TVDI�JOUFSOBM�DPOUSPM�BT�UIF�USVTUFFT�EFUFSNJOF�JT�OFDFTTBSZ�UP�FOBCMF�UIF�QSFQBSBUJPO�PG�mOBODJBM�
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
*O�QSFQBSJOH�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT
�UIF�USVTUFFT�BSF�SFTQPOTJCMF�GPS�BTTFTTJOH�UIF�DIBSJUBCMF�
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate 
the charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

$XGLWRU·V�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�IRU�WKH�DXGLW�RI�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV
0VS�PCKFDUJWFT�BSF�UP�PCUBJO�SFBTPOBCMF�BTTVSBODF�BCPVU�XIFUIFS�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�BT�B�XIPMF�
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
BHHSFHBUF
�UIFZ�DPVME�SFBTPOBCMZ�CF�FYQFDUFE�UP�JOnVFODF�UIF�FDPOPNJD�EFDJTJPOT�PG�VTFST�UBLFO�PO�
UIF�CBTJT�PG�UIFTF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design 
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect 
of irregularities, including fraud. 
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Based on our understanding of the charitable company and the environment in which it operates, we 
JEFOUJmFE�UIBU�UIF�QSJODJQBM�SJTLT�PG�OPO�DPNQMJBODF�XJUI�MBXT�BOE�SFHVMBUJPOT�SFMBUFE�UP�TBGFHVBSEJOH�
WVMOFSBCMF�CFOFmDJBSJFT
�IFBMUI�BOE�TBGFUZ
�BOE�FNQMPZNFOU�	JODMVEJOH�UBYBUJPO

�BOE�XF�DPOTJEFSFE�
UIF�FYUFOU�UP�XIJDI�OPO�DPNQMJBODF�NJHIU�IBWF�B�NBUFSJBM�FGGFDU�PO�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT��8F�BMTP�
DPOTJEFSFE�UIPTF�MBXT�BOE�SFHVMBUJPOT�UIBU�IBWF�B�EJSFDU�JNQBDU�PO�UIF�QSFQBSBUJPO�PG�UIF�mOBODJBM�
statements such as the Companies Act 2006, the Charities Act 2011 and Church of England Measures. 
8F�FWBMVBUFE�NBOBHFNFOU�T�JODFOUJWFT�BOE�PQQPSUVOJUJFT�GPS�GSBVEVMFOU�NBOJQVMBUJPO�PG�UIF�mOBODJBM�
statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were 
related to fund accounting, including transfers between funds, and revenue recognition.                
Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:
• Discussions with management including consideration of known                                                        

or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulation and fraud; 
• Evaluating management’s controls designed to prevent and detect irregularities; 
• Identifying and testing journals; 
• Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their critical               

accounting estimates;
• Testing transfers between funds; and
• Cut-off testing in respect of revenue.
"�GVSUIFS�EFTDSJQUJPO�PG�PVS�SFTQPOTJCJMJUJFT�GPS�UIF�BVEJU�PG�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�JT�MPDBUFE�PO�UIF�
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms 
part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the charitable company’s members, as a body, in accordance with 
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we 
might state to the charitable company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in 
an Auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept 
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable company’s 
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Signed: …………………………………

Adam Halsey (Senior Statutory Auditor)      

For and on behalf of Haysmacintyre LLP, Statutory Auditor 
10 Queen Street Place                    
London 
EC4R 1AG

Date: ……………
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Funds Notes Unrestricted 
General

Unrestricted 
Designated

Restricted Endowment Total 
funds 
2021

Total 
funds 
2020

£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Income and 
Endowments from
Donations
    Parish Share 2 9,697 - - - 9,697 9,604
    Archbishops’   
    Council & Church 
    Commissioners

3 197 - 485 - 682 691

    Other donations 4 159 6 446 - 611 430
Charitable activities 5 148 - 534 - 682 683
Other activities 6 740 - - - 740 684
Investments 7 129 15 294 453 891 919
Total 11,070 21 1,759 453 13,303 13,011

Expenditure on
Raising funds 8 89 - 65 - 154 161
Charitable activities 9 13,340 178 857 - 14,375 14,155
SDBF BC Ltd 10 233 - - - 233 208
Total 13,662 178 922 - 14,762 14,524

Net income/
(expenditure) before 
investment gains

(2,592) (157) 837 453 (1,459) (1,513)

Net gains/(losses) on 
investments/property/
glebe

11 392 73 1,209 2,186 3,860 300

Net income/
(expenditure)

(2,200) (84) 2,046 2,639 2,401 (1,213)

Gross transfers  
between funds

3,040 18,563 (21,470) (133) - -

Movement in clergy 
pension creditor

372 372 483

Net movement in funds 840 18,479 (19,424) 2,878 2,773 (730)

Total funds brought 
forward

3,163 495 27,137 94,871 125,666 126,396

Total funds carried 
forward

26 4,003 18,974 7,713 97,749 128,439 125,666

SALISBURY DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

5IF�OPUFT�PO�QBHFT����UP����GPSN�BO�JOUFHSBM�QBSU�PG�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT� 
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Funds 2021 2020

£,000 £,000

Total incoming resources 12,850 12,527
Resources expended (14,762) (14,524)
2SHUDWLQJ�VXUSOXV��GHÀFLW��IRU�WKH�\HDU (1,912) (1,997)

Net gains on investments 1,674 89
Net income/(expenditure) for the year (238) (1,908)

2WKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�
Net assets transferred from endowments 133 484

Total recognised gains for the year (105) (1,424)

SALISBURY DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The income and expenditure account is derived from the Statement       
of Financial Activities with movements in endowment funds excluded     
to comply with company law.

5IF�OPUFT�PO�QBHFT����UP����GPSN�BO�JOUFHSBM�QBSU�PG�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�
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Assets Notes Group 
2021

Parent
2021

Group 
2020

Parent
2020

£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 16 91,952 91,952 93,555 93,555
Investments 18 33,926 33,926 31,090 31,090
Programme related 
investments

19 89 89 89 89

125,967 125,967 124,734 124,734

Current assets   
Current Assets exc Cash 20 993 1,090 1,227 1,184
Cash at bank and          
in hand

21 4,805 4,548 3,704 3,531

  
&UHGLWRUV��DPRXQWV�
falling due within      
one year

22 (887) (855) (730) (684)

  
Net current assets  4,911 4,783 4,201 4,031

   
Total assets less 
current liabilities

130,878 130,750 128,935 128,765

     
&UHGLWRUV��DPRXQWV�
falling due in more 
than one year

23 (2,439) (2,439) (3,269) (3,269)

  
Net assets 128,439 128,311 125,666 125,496

    
5HSUHVHQWLQJ�
Funds 27 128,439 128,311 125,666 125,496

5IF�OPUFT�PO�QBHFT����UP����GPSN�BO�JOUFHSBM�QBSU�PG�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT��

The DBF does not have a separate revaluation reserve as the historic cost of 
most of its historical assets is not known. Valuation gains or losses are added to             
or deducted from the appropriate fund.  
5PUBM�GVOET�PG�UIF�QBSFOU�DPNQBOZ�BU����%FDFNCFS�XFSF�b���L�MFTT�UIBO�UIF��
(SPVQ�SFQSFTFOUJOH�HJGU�BJEFE�QSPmUT�OPU�ZFU�QBJE�PWFS��	�����b���L�MFTT
�

………………………………… Member of the DBF
(Signed by Mr N Salisbury, Chair of the DBF)

SALISBURY DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
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2021  2021  2020 2020
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

1HW�FDVK�LQÁRZ����RXWÁRZ��IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV  (2,219)  (2,696)

&DVK�ÁRZV�IURP�LQYHVWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV     
Dividends, interest and rent from investments 891 919
Dividends, interest and rent from investments
    5BOHJCMF�mYFE�BTTFUT 2,271 878
    Fixed asset investments 579 988
Purchase of:
    Tangible assets for the use of SDBF (296) (222)
    Investments - (10)
Repayment of bank loan (125) -

Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities 3,320 2,553

&DVK�ÁRZV�IURP�ÀQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV
Loans advanced - 2,500

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the 
reporting period

1,101 2,357

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 3,704 1,347
Cash and cash equivalent at 31 December 4,805 3,704

Reconciliation of net movements in funds to  2021 2020
£,000 £,000

Net movement in funds for the year ended 31 
December

2,773 (730)

$GMXVWPHQWV�IRU�
    Depreciation charges 115 97
    Dividends, interest and rent from investments (891) (919)
    Decrease/(increase) in debtors 234 52
    Increase in creditors (218) (413)
    1FOTJPO�EFmDJU�QSPWJTJPO�NPWFNFOU (372) (483)
    .PWFNFOU�JO�JOWFTUNFOUT�BOE�mYFE�BTTFUT (3,860) (300)
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities (2,219) (2,696)

Analysis of changes in net debt at 1 Jan 
2021

&DVKÁRZV Other 
changes

at 31 Dec 
2021

Cash and cash equivalents £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Cash and deposit accounts 3,704 1,101  - 4,805
3,704 1,101  - 4,805

Borrowings
Debt due within one year (125)                 125  (500) (500)
Debt due after one year (2,587)  - 458 (2,129)

(2,712) 125 (42) (2,629)
Total 992 1,226 (42) 2,176

5IF�OPUFT�PO�QBHFT����UP����GPSN�BO�JOUFHSBM�QBSU�PG�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT��

SALISBURY DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021



50

Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial 
Statements for the year ending 
31 December 2021

6WDWHPHQW�RI�FRPSOLDQFH��Salisbury Diocesan Board of Finance is a company limited 
by guarantee (registered number 17442) and a charity (registered number 240833) 
SFHJTUFSFE�JO�&OHMBOE���8BMFT��5IF�SFHJTUFSFE�PGmDF�BOE�QSJODJQBM�QMBDF�PG�CVTJOFTT�
is Church House, Crane Street, Salisbury, SP1 2QB. The principal activities of the 
charitable company are set out in the Trustees’ Report.
5IF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT
�XIJDI�DPNQSJTF�UIF�4UBUFNFOU�PG�'JOBODJBM�"DUJWJUJFT
�UIF�
Income and Expenditure Account, the Balance sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and 
UIF�SFMBUFE�OPUFT�DPOTUJUVUF�UIF�JOEJWJEVBM�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�PG�4BMJTCVSZ�%JPDFTBO�
#PBSE�PG�'JOBODF�GPS�UIF�ZFBS�FOEFE����%FDFNCFS�������5IF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�IBWF�
CFFO�QSFQBSFE�JO�DPNQMJBODF�XJUI�'34����BT�JU�BQQMJFT�UP�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�PG�
the charitable company for the year end ended 31 December 2021. Salisbury Diocesan 
#PBSE�PG�'JOBODF�NFFUT�UIF�EFmOJUJPO�PG�B�QVCMJD�CFOFmU�FOUJUZ�VOEFS�'34����
5IF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�IBWF�CFFO�QSFTFOUFE�JO�1PVOE�4UFSMJOH�BT�UIJT�JT�GVODUJPOBM�
DVSSFODZ�PG�UIF�%#'�BOE�BMM�WBMVFT�BSF�SPVOEFE�UP�UIF�OFBSFTU�UIPVTBOE�QPVOET�	b����
�
except when otherwise indicated.

%DVLV�RI�SUHSDUDWLRQ��5IF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�IBWF�CFFO�QSFQBSFE�VOEFS�UIF�IJTUPSJDBM�
DPTU�DPOWFOUJPO
�FYDFQU�GPS�mYFE�BTTFU�JOWFTUNFOUT
�XIJDI�BSF�JODMVEFE�BU�UIFJS�NBSLFU�
WBMVF�BU�UIF�CBMBODF�TIFFU�EBUF���5IF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�IBWF�CFFO�QSFQBSFE�JO�
accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice for Charities (SORP 2015), 
the Companies Act 2006 and applicable accounting standards (FRS102), and Diocesan 
Financial Statements Guide 5th edition 2015 (the DFS guide). 

*RLQJ�FRQFHUQ��The trustees have reviewed the anticipated performance for a period 
PG�BU�MFBTU�UXFMWF�NPOUIT�GSPN�UIF�EBUF�PG�BQQSPWBM�PG�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�XIJDI�
demonstrate that there is no material uncertainty regarding the DBF’s ability to meet its 
liabilities as they fall due, and to continue as a going concern. This is because mitigating 
measures have been taken to ensure liquidity. On this basis, the trustees consider it 
BQQSPQSJBUF�UP�QSFQBSF�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�PO�B�HPJOH�DPODFSO�CBTJT�

%DVLV�RI�&RQVROLGDWLRQ��5IF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�DPOTPMJEBUF�UIF�SFTVMUT�PG�UIF�DIBSJUZ�
and its wholly owned subsidiary, DBF Building Consultancy Limited, on a line-by-
line basis.  A separate Statement of Financial Activities and Income and Expenditure 
Account for the charity has not been presented because the charity has taken 
advantage of the exemption afforded by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.
DBF Building Consultancy Limited was incorporated on 13 June 2017 and started 
trading on 1 July 2017. Its results have been accounted for on a line by line basis.  
Intergroup transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation.

,QFRPH�  including legacies, is generally included in the Statement of Financial 
Activities (SoFA) when the DBF is entitled to the income, where receipt is probable, and 
UIF�BNPVOU�DBO�CF�RVBOUJmFE�XJUI�SFBTPOBCMF�BDDVSBDZ��5IF�DBUFHPSJFT�PG�JODPNJOH�
resources in the SoFA are those set down in the DFS guide.
• Share paid by parishes is treated as income of the year in which it is received except 

that amounts received up to the end of February of the following year in respect of 
the previous year are included as income of the year.

• Rent receivable is recognised as income in the period with respect to which               
it relates.

1. 
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• Interest and dividends are recognised as income when receivable. 
•� (SBOUT�SFDFJWFE�UIBU�BSF�TVCKFDU�UP�QSF�DPOEJUJPOT�GPS�FOUJUMFNFOU�TQFDJmFE�CZ�UIF�

donor which have not been met at the year-end are included in creditors to be carried 
forward to the following year.

• Parochial fees are recognised as income of the year to which they relate.
• Donations other than grants are recognised when receivable.
•� (BJOT�PO�EJTQPTBM�PG�mYFE�BTTFUT�GPS�UIF�%#'�T�PXO�VTF�	J�F��OPO�JOWFTUNFOU�BTTFUT
�

are accounted for as other income. Losses on disposal of such assets are accounted 
for as other expenditure.

• Services rendered: Revenues from a contract to provide services is recognised in the 
period in which the services are provided in accordance with the stage of completion 
PG�UIF�DPOUSBDU�XIFO�BMM�PG�UIF�GPMMPXJOH�DPOEJUJPOT�BSF�TBUJTmFE�

• the amount of revenue that can be measured reliably
• it is probable that the charitable company will receive the consideration due 

under the contract
• the stage of completion of the contract at the end of the reporting period can 

be measured reliably, and
• the costs incurred and the costs to complete the contract can be        

measured reliably.

([SHQGLWXUH� All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been 
DMBTTJmFE�VOEFS�IFBEJOHT�UIBU�BHHSFHBUF�BMM�DPTUT�SFMBUFE�UP�UIF�DBUFHPSZ��5IF�DBUFHPSJFT�
of resources expended in the SoFA are those set down in the DFS guide augmented to 
SFnFDU�UIF�%JPDFTF�T�4VEBO�BOE�-BUWJB�MJOLT�BOE�.JMUPO�"CCFZ�$IVSDI�
• Expenditure on raising funds is the costs attributable to generating incoming resources 

from all sources other than undertaking charitable activities.
• Expenditure on charitable activities comprises all the resources applied by the DBF in 

undertaking its work to meet its charitable objectives.
• Governance costs are the costs which relate to the strategic planning and the public 

accountability of the DBF and its compliance with legislation and regulations.
• Support costs are those costs incurred in the administration of the DBF, which 

whilst not themselves delivering a charitable activity are necessary to its proper 
administration and are apportioned on an estimated basis of staff time engaged in 
such support activities.

• Grants payable are charged in the year when the offer is conveyed to the recipient 
except in those cases where the offer is conditional, such grants being recognised as 
FYQFOEJUVSF�XIFSF�UIF�DPOEJUJPOT�BUUBDIJOH�BSF�GVMmMMFE�

)XQGV��The DBF’s funds have been grouped under the following headings:
Unrestricted Funds are available for use at the discretion of the trustees. The general fund 
is the principal fund for use in furtherance of the general objectives of the DBF. There are 
also several other designated funds established by the DBF for particular purposes.
Restricted Funds�BSF�GVOET�XIJDI�BSF�UP�CF�VTFE�JO�BDDPSEBODF�XJUI�TQFDJmD�SFTUSJDUJPOT�
imposed by donors or restricted by Measure. The cost of raising and administering such 
GVOET�BSF�DIBSHFE�BHBJOTU�UIF�TQFDJmD�GVOE�
Endowment Funds are a category of restricted funds the capital of which may be either 
expendable or permanent.
The purpose of every fund under each heading is set out in pages 67-69 of the 
mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT��"MM�JODPNF
�FYQFOEJUVSF�BOE�HBJOT�BOE�MPTTFT�BSF�BMMPDBUFE�UP�UIF���
appropriate fund.
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7DQJLEOH�À[HG�DVVHWV�DQG�GHSUHFLDWLRQ��5BOHJCMF�mYFE�BTTFUT�DPTUJOH�NPSF�UIBO�b�L�
are capitalised and included at cost including any incidental expenses of acquisition. 
All freehold properties are included in the balance sheet at cost, properties acquired 
before the date of transition to FRS102 have been recognised using the revaluation as 
deemed cost exemption. The previous GAAP valuation was performed on 31 December 
������.JYFE�VTF�QSPQFSUZ�IFME�CZ�UIF�%#'�DPNQSJTFT�UIF�PGmDFT�BU�$IVSDI�)PVTF�BOE�
residential property at the same site. This property is not valued by its separate functions, 
as the DBF believes that such a valuation would not be materially different. 
The DBF has decided no depreciation is required on the freehold properties as:
• Estimated economic life far exceeds 50 years,
• Any depreciation charges and accumulated depreciation would not be material and 
• Buildings are maintained in a sound condition by a continual repairs and improvements 

programme, the cost of which is charged to the income and expenditure account.
As a result of the policy of non-depreciation, the DBF performs annual impairment reviews 
in accordance with the requirements of FRS102 to ensure that the carrying value  of the 
properties is not more than the recoverable amount.
%FQSFDJBUJPO�PO�GVSOJUVSF
�mUUJOHT�BOE�PGmDF�FRVJQNFOU�JT�DIBSHFE�PO�B�TUSBJHIU�MJOF�
basis at a rate of 33.3% to write off assets over their useful lives. A full year’s charge is 
made in the year of acquisition. Other equipment includes photovoltaic solar installations, 
XIJDI�BSF�EFQSFDJBUFE�PWFS�UIFJS�VTFGVM�FDPOPNJD�MJGF�BT�EFmOFE�CZ�UIF�DPOUSBDUT�GPS��������������������
feed-in payments. 

)L[HG�$VVHW�,QYHVWPHQWV� Unlisted investments are stated at market value at the balance 
sheet date. The SoFA includes the net gains and losses arising on revaluations and 
disposals during the year.
Land and properties that are held for investment purposes have been included at their   
fair value.
Programme related investments are included at the sum originally invested, less any 
impairments and, in the case of loans, repayments.

3HQVLRQ�&RVWV� The DBF participates in a pension scheme for employees. The assets of 
the scheme are held separately from those of the company. Contributions are assessed by 
B�RVBMJmFE�BDUVBSZ�TP�BT�UP�TQSFBE�UIF�DPTU�PWFS�FNQMPZFFT�XPSLJOH�MJWFT��%FUBJMT�PG�DMFSHZ�
pensions are given in pages 76-78.

)LQDQFLDO�,QVWUXPHQWV��5IF�$IBSJUZ�POMZ�IBT�mOBODJBM�BTTFUT�BOE�mOBODJBM�MJBCJMJUJFT�PG�
B�LJOE�UIBU�RVBMJGZ�BT�CBTJD�mOBODJBM�JOTUSVNFOUT��#BTJD�mOBODJBM�JOTUSVNFOUT�BSF�JOJUJBMMZ�
recognised at transaction value and subsequently measured at their settlement value with 
the exception of loans, which are subsequently measured at amortisation cost using the 
effective interest method.

3XEOLF�EHQHÀW�HQWLW\�FRQFHVVLRQDU\�ORDQV��5IF�$IBSJUZ�JOJUJBMMZ�NFBTVSFT�QVCMJD�CFOFmU�
concessionary loans at the amount received or paid. Subsequently the carrying amount 
PG�DPODFTTJPOBSZ�MPBOT�BSF�BEKVTUFE�UP�SFnFDU�BOZ�BDDSVFE�JOUFSFTU�QBZBCMF�PS�SFDFJWBCMF��
To the extent that a loan that has been made is irrecoverable, an impairment loss is 
recognised in income and expenditure.
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-XGJHPHQWV�DQG�NH\�VRXUFHV�RU�HVWLPDWLRQ�XQFHUWDLQW\��5IF�QSFQBSBUJPO�PG�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts 
reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and amounts reported for income and 
expenditure during the year. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could differ 
from those estimates. The following judgements (apart from those involving estimates) have had the 
NPTU�TJHOJmDBOU�FGGFDU�PO�BNPVOU�SFDPHOJTFE�JO�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�

&OHUJ\�SURSHUWLHV�KHOG�DV�WDQJLEOH�À[HG�DVVHWV��These are held at deemed historical cost. 
Each year consideration is given to the need for an impairment provision. No such provision 
JT�SFRVJSFE�GPS������EVF�UP�GBWPVSBCMF�NBSLFU�DPOEJUJPOT�BOE�UIF�GBDU�UIBU�GPVS�PVU�PG�UIF�mWF�
QSPQFSUJFT�TPME�XFSF�BU�B�QSPmU�

)DLU�YDOXH�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUWLHV� Investment properties are included at fair market 
value, as assessed by Strutt & Parker who manage these properties. The properties are 
revalued triennially with adjustments for impairment included each year if necessary.

3HQVLRQ�DQG�RWKHU�SRVW�HPSOR\PHQW�EHQHÀWV� Pension provisions relating to lay staff and 
clergy are valued every three years on an actuarial basis. Any shortfall in funding pensions 
BOE�QPTU�SFUJSFNFOU�CFOFmUT�JT�SFDPHOJTFE�BT�B�MJBCJMJUZ�JO�UIF�BDDPVOUT��'VSUIFS�EFUBJMT�DBO�
be found in pages 76–78.

%HQHÀFH�KRXVHV�UHFRJQLWLRQ� #FOFmDF�IPVTFT�BSF�MFHBMMZ�WFTUFE�JO�UIF�JODVNCFOU�PG�UIF�
CFOFmDF��)PXFWFS
�UIF�%#'�IBT�SFDPHOJTFE�UIFTF�BT�GVODUJPOBM�BTTFUT�PO�UIF�CBTJT�UIBU�UIF�
DBF carries both obligations in terms of maintenance and improvement and object related 
CFOFmUT�PG�PXOFSTIJQ�

'HSUHFLDWLRQ�RI�IUHHKROG�SURSHUWLHV� The DBF does not depreciate its freehold properties, 
as it judges any depreciation charge to be immaterial because of the long life of the asset 
and high residual value based on the DBF policy of regular maintenance. The DBF carries 
out an impairment review when signs of impairment exist.
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Current year parish Share receipts represent 90% of the total apportioned (2020 89.8%), or,            
when receipts for previous years are included, 90.6% of the total apportioned (2020 89.8%)  

  3. The National Church institutions

4. Other donations

5. Charitable activities

6. Other activities

7. Investment income

general designated
Restricted 

funds
Endowment 

funds
Total 

funds 
2021

Total 
funds 
2020

£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

  Share for the year per the Budget 10,692  -  -  - 10,692 10,692

  Less: provision for shortfall in contributions (1,073)  -  -  - (1,073) (1,092)
  Less: write-off in year (46)  -  -  - (46)

9,573  -  -  - 9,573 9,600
  Plus: arrears for previous years 124  -  -  - 124 4

9,697  -  - 9,697 9,604

Unrestricted 

The Archbishops' Council

      Strategic Development funding  -  - 199  - 199 190
      RME  -  - 286  - 286 294
Strategic Ministry Funding 85  -  -  - 85 42
The Church Commissioners

      Area Bishops' secretaries 60  -  -  - 60 92
      Past Case Review (PCR)  -  -  -  - - 23
      Bishop's secretary 52  -  -  - 52 50

197  - 485  - 682 691

All Churches Trust 117  - 13  - 130 127

Other grants 32  - 43  - 75 -
Donations 10 6 390  - 406 303

159 6 446  - 611 430

Statutory fees and chaplaincy income  -  - 534  - 534 596

Management Fees 148  - -  - 148 87
148  - 534  - 682 683

  Rental income from let clergy houses 379  -  -  - 379 275

  Fee income from property projects 361  -  -  - 361 409
740  -  -  - 740 684

  Dividends receivable 93 15 110 452 670 719

  Interest receivable 0.4 0.2 2 0.1 3 13
  Rents from investment properties  -  - 182  - 182 160
  Rents from other properties 36  -  -  - 36 27

129 15 294 453 891 919

SALISBURY DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. Parish Share
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SALISBURY DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

8. Fund raising costs

9. Charitable activities

general designated
Restricted 

funds
Endowment 

funds
Total 

funds 
2021

Total 
funds 
2020

£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Glebe agent's fees  -  - 65  - 65 63

Agents' fees on other let property 55  -  -  - 55 25
Other expenses on other let property 16  -  -  - 16 23
Fund Raising 18  -  -  - 18 50

89  - 65  - 154 161

Unrestricted 

Direct ministry cost

Stipends, national insurance, A Levy & Pensions 7,237  -  -  - 7,237 7,271
Clergy expenses 150  - -  - 150 189
Maintenance of clergy property 1,980  - 125  - 2,105 1,844

9,367 - 125 - 9,492 9,304
Ministerial support and support to parishes

Ministry support  team 411 178 7  - 596 629
Communications 109  -  -  - 109 99
Social justice, discipleship and mission outreach 97  -  -  - 97 60
Ordinands college costs  -  - 269  - 269 271
National Church - training for Ministry Vote 1       
and pooling

522  -  -  - 522 518

Parish support; governance, pastoral, patronage    
& admin

303  -  -  - 303 265

Rural Hope  -  - 199  - 199 191
Church Buildings 183  -  -  - 183 186
Safeguarding 176  -  -  - 176 178
Registrar & Chancellorship                                     
and other professional fees

182  -  -  - 182 199

"SFB�PGmDFT 132  -  -  - 132 157
Milton Abbey  -  - 54  - 54 29
Supporting parish trusts 21  -  -  - 21 20

2,136 178 529 - 2,843 2,802
Work with children and young people 336  -  -  - 336 330

Central costs and IT 

Central costs 603  -  -  - 603 583
Human Resources 64  - 23  - 87 79
Investment in IT 217  -  -  - 217 144

884 - 23 - 907 806
Other non parish-costs

National Church - central costs (Votes 2–5) 542  -  -  - 542 559
Supporting the Sudans  -  - 181  - 181 241
Share discount and provision 35  -  -  - 35 80
Interest payable 15  -  -  - 15 1

592 - 181 - 773 881
Governance

Audit 20  -  -  - 20 19
Synod costs and meetings 4  -  -  - 4 13

24 - - - 24 32
Total charitable activities 13,339 178 858 - 14,375 14,155
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SALISBURY DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

10. Other resources expended

11. (Losses) / gains on investments, property and glebe

12. Analysis of resources expended

general designated
Restricted 

funds
Endowment 

funds
Total 

funds 
2021

Total 
funds 
2020

£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

SDBF BC Ltd 233  -  -  - 233 208
233  -  -  - 233 208

Unrestricted 

3FBMJTFE�QSPmU�	MPTT
�PO�TBMF�PG�
investments

215  -  - 630 845 (148)

Movement in value of 
investments

202 73 739 1,157 2,171 (722)

Realised gain on sale of clergy 
property

 -  - 487  - 487 45

Realised gain on sale of glebe  -  -  - 399 399 65
Movement in valuation of glebe  -  -  -  -  - 1,060
Increase in loan provision (25) (17) (42)  - 

392 73 1,209 2,186 3,860 300

including allocation of 
support costs

Activities 
undertaken directly

Grant funding of 
activities

Support 
costs

Total

£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Raising funds 154  -  - 154
Direct ministry cost 9,221 270  - 9,491
Ministerial support and support 
to parishes

1,576 575 693 2,844

Support for Children and    
Young people

- 336  - 336

Central costs, HR and IT 907  -  - 907
National Church central costs  - 542  - 542
Supporting the Sudans  - 180 1 181
Share discount 35  -  - 35
Interest payable 15  -  - 15
Governance  -  - 24 24

11,908 1,903 718 14,529

Allocation of support cost Activities 
undertaken directly

Grant funding of 
activities

Support 
costs

Total 
2021

Total 
2020

£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

4UBGG�$PTUT���0GmDF 578  -  - 578 487
Governance  -  - 24 24 32
Depreciation 115  -  - 115 97
Supporting the Sudans  -  - 1 1 3

693  - 25 718 619
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general designated
Restricted 

funds
Endowment 

funds
Total 

funds 
2021

Total 
funds 
2020

£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

SDBF BC Ltd 233  -  -  - 233 208
233  -  -  - 233 208

3FBMJTFE�QSPmU�	MPTT
�PO�TBMF�PG�
investments

215  -  - 630 845 (148)

Movement in value of 
investments

202 73 739 1,157 2,171 (722)

Realised gain on sale of clergy 
property

 -  - 487  - 487 45

Realised gain on sale of glebe  -  -  - 399 399 65
Movement in valuation of glebe  -  -  -  -  - 1,060
Increase in loan provision (25) (17) (42)  - 

392 73 1,209 2,186 3,860 300

including allocation of 
support costs

Activities 
undertaken directly

Grant funding of 
activities

Support 
costs

Total

£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Raising funds 154  -  - 154
Direct ministry cost 9,221 270  - 9,491
Ministerial support and support 
to parishes

1,576 575 693 2,844

Support for Children and    
Young people

- 336  - 336

Central costs, HR and IT 907  -  - 907
National Church central costs  - 542  - 542
Supporting the Sudans  - 180 1 181
Share discount 35  -  - 35
Interest payable 15  -  - 15
Governance  -  - 24 24

11,908 1,903 718 14,529

Allocation of support cost Activities 
undertaken directly

Grant funding of 
activities

Support 
costs

Total 
2021

Total 
2020

£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

4UBGG�$PTUT���0GmDF 578  -  - 578 487
Governance  -  - 24 24 32
Depreciation 115  -  - 115 97
Supporting the Sudans  -  - 1 1 3

693  - 25 718 619

SALISBURY DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

13. Analysis of grants payable
2021 2020
£,000 £,000

To Institutions
National Church Responsibilities
     The Archbishop’s Council 1,064 1,077
     Salisbury Diocesan Board of Education 336 330

1,400 1,407
Diocesan Links Overseas
     Sudanese Dioceses / schools / colleges 180 238

180 238
Within the Diocese:
     PCCs 34 27
     Other mission bodies 13 8
     County ecumenical bodies 6 6

53 41

To Individuals
Individual training for ministry 168 118
Hardship - 34
First appointment, resettlement and removal 102 99

270 251

Totals for all grants 1,903 1,937
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14. Staff and stipendiary costs

The numbers of staff whose emoluments (excluding pension contributions) amounted to more    
UIBO�b��L�XFSF�BT�GPMMPXT��

Remuneration of key management personnel 

Diocesan Secretary, David Pain
Diocesan Director of Finance and Asset management, Elizabeth Ashmead
%JPDFTBO�%JSFDUPS�PG�.JTTJPO���.JOJTUSZ�BOE�%FQVUZ�%JPDFTBO�4FDSFUBSZ
�+POBUIBO�5SJGmUU
Diocesan Surveyor and Head of Property, Shawn Donneky
3FNVOFSBUJPO
�QFOTJPOT�BOE�FYQFOTFT�GPS�UIFTF�FNQMPZFFT�BNPVOUFE�UP�b���
���������������������������
	������b���
���
�
No trustee has received from the DBF any remuneration for services as a trustee.                  
5SVTUFFT�SFDFJWFE�USBWFMMJOH�BOE�PVU�PG�QPDLFU�FYQFOTFT�BT�USVTUFFT�PG�b�OJM�	������b���
�

 

2021 2020
£,000 £,000

Gross Salaries 1,592 1,600 
Social security costs 153 152 
Pension costs 298 293 

2,043 2,045 
Split of staff costs
Rural Hope and fully reimbursed under Strategic Development Funding 144 144 
Part of clergy deployment or recharged to parishes 198 144 
SDBF BC Ltd 187 142 
Remaining DBF staff 1,514 1,615 

2,043 2,045 

2021 2020
£,000 £,000

b��
������b��
��� 1 1 
b��
������b��
��� 1 -
b��
������b��
��� 1 1 
1FOTJPO�QBZNFOUT�PG�b��
����	�����b��
���
�XFSF�NBEF�GPS���������������
these employees.

Redundancy payments made in the year were as follows: 22 116 

The average numbers of employees, based on full time equivalents, were 
as follows:

44 46 
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2021 2020
£,000 £,000

Gross Salaries 1,592 1,600 
Social security costs 153 152 
Pension costs 298 293 

2,043 2,045 
Split of staff costs
Rural Hope and fully reimbursed under Strategic Development Funding 144 144 
Part of clergy deployment or recharged to parishes 198 144 
SDBF BC Ltd 187 142 
Remaining DBF staff 1,514 1,615 

2,043 2,045 

2021 2020
£,000 £,000

b��
������b��
��� 1 1 
b��
������b��
��� 1 -
b��
������b��
��� 1 1 
1FOTJPO�QBZNFOUT�PG�b��
����	�����b��
���
�XFSF�NBEF�GPS���������������
these employees.

Redundancy payments made in the year were as follows: 22 116 

The average numbers of employees, based on full time equivalents, were 
as follows:

44 46 

Stipend

The Rt Rev K Gorham No
The Rt Rev Dr A Rumsey No
The Ven A P Jeans Yes
The Ven P Sayer Yes
The Ven S Groom Yes
The Ven A C MacRow-Wood Yes
The Rev L Cook Yes
Canon D Baldwin Yes
Canon A Perry Yes
Canon G Osborne No
Canon L Holt Yes
Canon J Curtis Yes

2021 2020
£,000 £,000

Direct cost of clergy 
Stipends 4,841 4,871
National Insurance contributions 393 391
Apprenticeship levy 22 22

5,256 5,284
As part of Rural Hope and fully reimbursed
Stipends 27 27
National Insurance contributions 2 2
Apprenticeship levy - -

29 29
Total Stipends
Stipends 4,868 4,898
National Insurance contributions 395 393
Apprenticeship levy 22 22

5,285 5,313

5IF�UBCMF�CFMPX�JEFOUJmFT�USVTUFFT�XIP�XFSF�JO�SFDFJQU�PG�B�TUJQFOE�GVOEFE�CZ�UIF�%#'�BOE�PS�IPVTJOH�
provided by the DBF in the year.

The DBF is responsible for funding via the Church Commissioners the stipends of licensed stipendiary 
clergy in the Diocese, other than bishops and cathedral staff. The DBF is also responsible for the 
provision of housing for stipendiary clergy in the Diocese including the Suffragan Bishops but excluding 
Diocesan Bishop and Cathedral staff.

5IF�%#'�QBJE�BO�BWFSBHF�	'5&
�PG�����	���������
�TUJQFOEJBSZ�DMFSHZ�BT�PGmDF�IPMEFST
�BOE�UIF�DPTUT�
were as follows:

The annual rate of stipend, funded by the DBF, paid to Archdeacons in 2021 was in the range   
b��
���–b��
����	������SBOHF�b��
���–b��
���
�
0UIFS�DMFSHZ�XIP�XFSF�USVTUFFT�XFSF�QBJE�JO�UIF�SBOHF�b��
���–b��
���������������������������������������������
	������SBOHF�b��
���–b��
���
�

)PVTJOH�BMMPXBODF�GPS������XBT�b�
����	������b�
���
�
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15. Connected charities

2021 2020
£,000 £,000

Transactions with DBE and SALED Ltd
Charged by DBF:
����UP�4"-&%�-UE�GPS�PGmDF�TFSWJDFT  -   4

Grants made by DBF to DBE 336 330

    SALED  -   4

The trustees consider that Salisbury Diocesan Board of Education Ltd (DBE) is a connected charity. 
The work of education in the Diocese is undertaken by the DBF through the DBE as a department. 
DBE employs no staff of its own, though its trading subsidiary, SALED Ltd, does. The DBF makes 
grants to the DBE for its work in the Diocese.   

  

Restricted Totals
Property Equipment Assistant  

staff 
houses 

and other 
property 

Team 
vicarages

#FOFmDF�
houses

Cost or Valuation £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 

At 1 January 2021* 1,815 851 19,951 15,224 56,338 94,179
Additions  - 75 221  -  - 296
Disposals  -  - (1,784)  -  - (1,784)
At 31 December 2021 1,815 926 18,388 15,224 56,338 92,691

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2021  - 624  -  -  - 624
Charge for the year  - 115  -  -  - 115
Disposals  -  -  -  -  -  - 
At 31 December 2021  - 739  -  -  - 739

Net Book Value

At 31 December 2021 1,815 187 18,388 15,224 56,338 91,952

At 31 December 2020 1,815 227 19,951 15,224 56,338 93,555

Unrestricted Endowment 

*Two properties haves been purchased with the help of value-linked loans from the Church   
  Commissioners; when disposed of, the appropriate share of the net sale proceeds will be remitted  
  to the Commissioners, and the related loan liability extinguished. The value of the properties included 
��BCPWF�BNPVOUT�UP�b���L�	������b���L
�  
  

16. Tangible assets
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2021 2020
£,000 £,000

Transactions with DBE and SALED Ltd
Charged by DBF:
����UP�4"-&%�-UE�GPS�PGmDF�TFSWJDFT  -   4

Grants made by DBF to DBE 336 330

    SALED  -   4

Restricted Totals
Property Equipment Assistant  

staff 
houses 

and other 
property 

Team 
vicarages

#FOFmDF�
houses

Cost or Valuation £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 

At 1 January 2021* 1,815 851 19,951 15,224 56,338 94,179
Additions  - 75 221  -  - 296
Disposals  -  - (1,784)  -  - (1,784)
At 31 December 2021 1,815 926 18,388 15,224 56,338 92,691

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2021  - 624  -  -  - 624
Charge for the year  - 115  -  -  - 115
Disposals  -  -  -  -  -  - 
At 31 December 2021  - 739  -  -  - 739

Net Book Value

At 31 December 2021 1,815 187 18,388 15,224 56,338 91,952

At 31 December 2020 1,815 227 19,951 15,224 56,338 93,555

SALISBURY DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

17. Heritage Assets

2021 2020
£,000 £,000

a. Investments with fund managers
        Market value at 1 January 18,709 20,491
        Additions at cost 6,888 10
        Disposals at carrying value (6,043) (1,072)
        Net investment gains / losses 2,171 (721)
        Market value at 31 December 2021 21,725 18,709

b. Investment properties
        Carrying value at 1 January 12,381 11,321
        Revaluation at 31 December  - 1,060
        Disposals at carrying value (180)  - 
        Carrying value at 31 December 12,201 12,381

Total Investment Fixed Assets at 31 December 2021 33,926 31,090

2021 2020
£,000 £,000

,QYHVWPHQWV�ZLWK�IXQG�PDQDJHUV�FRPSULVH�
CBF Church of England
       505,075 Investment Fund Shares (2020: 505,075) 11,812 10,328
       1,792,094 Property Fund Shares (2020: 1,792,094) 2,609 2,283

Nil units M&G Charifund (2020: 440,284 units)  - 6,043

5,536,725 units Sarasin Investments Active Climate     
Endowment Fund

7,249  - 

Clergy Mutual Credit Union Deferred Shares 5 5
Community Solar projects 40 40
Schools Energy Cooperative 10 10

21,725 18,709

,QYHVWPHQW�3URSHUWLHV�FRPSULVH� 12,201 12,381

Total investments 33,926 31,090

The DBF owns Milton Abbey Church which has a nil valuation attributed to it because of 
its restricted use, its restricted access and the long term maintenance liabilities which 
attach to it.    

  

For both investments and investment properties the historical cost is not known. 

  

18.�,QYHVWPHQW�À[HG�DVVHWV
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19. Programme related investments

20. Debtors

21. Cash and deposit accounts

1SPHSBNNF�SFMBUFE�JOWFTUNFOUT�DPNQSJTF�B�UPUBM�PG�b��L�FRVJUZ�TIBSF�MPBOT�JO�UISFF�
properties for clergy at retirement. Such investments are made directly in pursuit of the 
%#'�T�DIBSJUBCMF�QVSQPTFT�SBUIFS�UIBO�GPS�mOBODJBM�JOWFTUNFOU�QVSQPTFT��5IF�BNPVOUT�
shown represent the sums originally advanced as required under FRS102. The loans are 
not expected to be repaid in the short term.   

  

*ODMVEFE�JO�EFCUPST�BSF�b���L�MPBOT�UP�QBSJTIFT�EVF�JO�NPSF�UIBO�POF�ZFBS�	������b���L
�
  

  

Group Parent Group Parent
2021 2021 2020 2020
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Loans to parishes 179 179 190 190
Parish Share 104 104 110 110
Accrued income 272 198 270 163
Sundry debtors 438 609 657 721
Totals 993 1,090 1,227 1,184

Group Parent Group Parent
2021 2021 2020 2020
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Cash at bank and in hand 4,805 4,548 3,704 3,531
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Group Parent Group Parent
2021 2021 2020 2020
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Loans to parishes 179 179 190 190
Parish Share 104 104 110 110
Accrued income 272 198 270 163
Sundry debtors 438 609 657 721
Totals 993 1,090 1,227 1,184

Group Parent Group Parent
2021 2021 2020 2020
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Cash at bank and in hand 4,805 4,548 3,704 3,531

SALISBURY DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

22. Creditors - amounts falling due within one year

23. Creditors - amounts due after more than one year

24. Financial commitments
There were no commitments approved by the DBF but not paid during the year. 
  

Loans from the Talbot Village Trust and the Church Commissioners are value linked loans 
on two properties and are due to be repaid on sale of the properties. The value of the 
loan was increased in 2021 to match increase to the value of the property.
The Coronavirus interruption loan was taken out in Autumn 2020. A one year capital 
BOE�JOUFSFTU�SFQBZNFOU�IPMJEBZ�XBT�HSBOUFE��SFQBZNFOU�BU�b�����L�QFS�NPOUI�TUBSUFE�
in October 2021. There is no penalty for early repayment. The loan is secured on           
three clergy houses.    

  

Group Parent Group Parent
2021 2021 2020 2020
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

HM Revenue & Customs 5 5 25 5
Accruals 138 133 91 67
Other creditors 244 217 489 487
Coronavirus Business Interruption Loan 
(CBIL)

500 500 125 125

Totals 887 855 730 684

Group Parent Group Parent
2021 2021 2020 2020
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

D���&OHUJ\�SHQVLRQ�GHÀFLW 310 310 682 682

b. Loans
Talbot Village Trust 109 109 92 92
Church Commissioners 145 145 120 120
Coronavirus Business Interruption Loan 
(CBIL)

1,875 1,875 2,375 2,375

Total loans 2,129 2,129 2,587 2,587
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Group Parent Group Parent

2021 2021 2020 2020
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Cash 4,805 4,548        3,704    3,531 
Financial assets held at fair value 34,015 34,015      31,179  31,179 
Financial assets held at amortised cost 766 863        1,028       985 
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost (3,083) (3,077) (3,762) (3,737)
Financial liabilities held at fair value (212) (212) (212) (212)
1HW�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV 36,291 36,137      31,937  31,746 

SALISBURY DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

25. Financial instruments

a) Financial assets held at fair value include listed and                     
unlisted investments. 

b) Financial assets held at amortised cost includes accrued income,    
loans to parishes and other debtors but excludes prepayments. 

c) Financial liabilities held at amortised cost includes trade creditors, 
accruals, loans and other creditors but excludes deferred income     
and statutory taxes and valued linked loans.   

d) Financial liabilities measured at fair value are value-linked loans           
to the charity.    
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2021 As at 1 
January 

2021

Income Expenditure Transfers Pension 
movement 

Gains & 
Losses

As at 31 
December 

2021
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Unrestricted funds
General 3,163 11,070 (13,662) 3,040 392 4,003

Designated funds
Clergy Conference 78  - - 15  - - 93
Aldhelm Mission 255 13 (13) 15  - 37 307
Ordinands Support  - - (165) 165  - - -
Crompton 162 8 - (20)  - 37 186
Designated property  -  - - 18,388  - - 18,388
Totals for designated funds 495 21 (178) 18,563  - 73 18,974

Totals for unrestricted funds 3,658 11,091 (13,840) 21,603  - 466 22,977

Restricted funds
Pastoral & Development (DPA) 24,797 58 (139) (20,541)  - 944 5,119
Stipend Income Account - 935 (73) (862)  -  - -
The Sudans -
   Sudan General 122 69 (96) -  -  - 95
   Sudan Relief & Development - - - -  -  - -
   Sudan Medical Link 27 68 (40) -  -  - 55
   Sudan Juba School 24 35 (45) -  -  - 14
Milton Abbey - 36 (54) 18  -  - -
Latvia (3) - - 3  -  - -
Diocesan Choral 14 - - (15)  - 1 -
RME 34 286 (269) -  -  - 51
IME pilgrimage 6 - - (6)  -  - -
Strategic Development Funding 1 199 (199) (1)  -  - -
Ministry in parishes 2,115 53 - (53)  - 264 2,379
Music - 20 (7) (13)  -  - -
Totals for restricted funds 27,137 1,759 (922) (21,470) - 1,209 7,713

Expendable endowment
#FOFmDF�)PVTFT 56,019  -  - 320  -  - 56,339

Permanent endowment
Stipend Capital Account 35,429 353  - (19,454) 372 1,693 18,393
Unapplied Total Return  -  -  - 19,101  -  - 19,101
Endowments for ministry in parishes 3,423 100 - (100)  - 493 3,916

38,852 453 - (453) 372 2,186 41,410

Total endowment funds 94,871 453 - (133) 372 2,186 97,749

Grand totals for all funds 125,666 13,303 (14,762) - 372 3,860 128,439

SALISBURY DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

26. Fund movements in the year
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2021 Tangible Investments Current 
Assets 

excl cash

Cash Transfer to 
Unapplied 

Total Return

Current 
liabilities

Long 
term 

liabilities

Net 
assets

£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Unrestricted funds
General 2,001 2,742 753 1,414 (887) (2,020) 4,003
Designated funds
Clergy Conference  -  -  - 93  -  - 93
Aldhelm Mission  - 292  - 15  -  - 307
Ordinands Support  -  -  - -  -  - -
Crompton - 292  - (106)  -  - 186
Designated Property 18,388  -  -  -  -  - 18,388
Totals for designated funds 18,388 584 - 2  -  - 18,974

Totals for unrestricted funds 20,389 3,326 753 1,416 (887) (2,020) 22,977
     

Restricted funds
Pastoral & Development (DPA)  - 3,837 180 1,211  -  (109) 5,119
Stipend Income Account  -   -  - -  -  - - 
The Sudans
   Sudan General  -   -  - 95  -   - 95
   Sudan Relief & Development  -  -  - -  -  - - 
   Sudan Medical Link  -   -  - 55  -  - 55
   Sudan Juba School  -   -  - 14  -  - 14
Milton Abbey  -   - 4 (4)  -   - - 
Latvia  -   -  - -  -  - - 
Choral  -  4  - (4)  -  - - 
RME  -  -  - 51  -  - 51
IME pilgrimage  -   -  - -  -  - - 
Strategic Development Funding  -   - 53 (53) -   - - 
#JTIPQTh�0GmDF�&RVJQNFOU  -   - 3 (3)  -  - - 
Ministry in parishes  -  2,188  - 191 -   - 2,379
Music  -  -  - -  -   - - 
Totals for restricted funds - 6,029 240 1,553 - (109) 7,713

     
Expendable endowment
#FOFmDF�)PVTFT 56,338  -  - 1  -  - 56,339

Permanent endowment
Stipend Capital Account 15,224 20,740  - 1,840 (19,101)  - (310) 18,393
Unapplied Total Return 19,101 19,101
Endowments for ministry           
in parishes

 - 3,920  - (4)  -  - 3,916

15,224 24,660  - 1,836 -  - (310) 41,410

Total endowment funds 71,562 24,660  - 1,837  - (310) 97,749
       

Grand totals for all funds 91,952 34,015 993 4,805 (887) (2,439) 128,439

SALISBURY DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

27. Summary of assets by fund
Fixed assets Creditors
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SALISBURY DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

28.�3ULRU�\HDU�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�DFWLYLWLHV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

2020
general designated

Restricted 
funds

Endowment 
funds

Total 
funds 
2020

Total 
funds 
2019

Income and Endowments from £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Donations:

    Parish Share 9,604   -   -   - 9,604 10,354 
    Archbishops' Council & 
    Church Commissioners

207                   - 484             - 691 592 

    Other donations 163                   - 267                  - 430 374 
Charitable activities 79                   - 604                  - 683 771 
Other activities 684                   -               -           - 684 663 
Investments 139 16 280 484 919 1,100 
Totals 10,876 16 1,635 484 13,011 13,854 

Expenditure on
Raising Funds 98                   - 63 - 161 169 
Charitable activities 13,099 160 896  - 14,155 14,296 
Other 208                   - - - 208 170 
Totals 13,405 160 959               - 14,524 14,635 

Net income/(expenditure) before 
investment gains

(2,529) (144) 676 484 (1,513) (781)

Net gains/(losses) on investments/      
property/glebe

(315) 32 372 211 300 2,661 

Net income/(expenditure) (2,844) (112) 1,048 695 (1,213) 1,880 

Gross transfers between funds 1,139 139 (794) (484)    -    - 

Other recognised gains / (losses)
Pension Movement     -                   - - 483 483 2,482 

Net movement in funds (1,705) 27 254 694 (730) 4,362 

Total funds brought forward 4,868 468 26,883 94,177 126,396 122,034 

Total funds carried forward 3,163 495 27,137 94,871 125,666 126,396 

Unrestricted 



68

2020 As at 1 
January 

2020

Income Expenditure Transfers Pension 
movement 

Gains & 
Losses

As at 31 
December 

2020
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Unrestricted funds
General 4,868 10,876 (13,405) 1,139 - (315) 3,163 

Designated funds
Clergy Conference 45         - - 33           - - 78 
Aldhelm Mission 239 8 (8)           -           - 16 255 
Ordinands Support           -           - (118) 118           -           -           -
Crompton 184 8 (34) (12)           - 16 162 
Pastoral & Development Designated -           -           -           -           -           -           -
Totals for designated funds 468 16 (160) 139         - 32 495 

Totals for unrestricted funds 5,336 10,892 (13,565) 1,278              - (283) 3,658 

Restricted funds
Pastoral & Development (DPA) 24,855 67 (158) (221)        -     254 24,797 
Stipend Income Account           - 764 (64) (700)           -           -           -
The Sudans -
   Sudan General /                    
   Relief & Development 

66 176 (120)           -           -           - 122 

   Sudan Medical Link 67 32 (72)           -           -           - 27 
   Sudan Juba School 32 40 (48)           -           -           - 24 
Milton Abbey (109) 15 (30) 124           -           -           -
Latvia (3)           -           -           -           -           - (3)
Diocesan Choral 14           - (1)           -           -           - 13 
RME 12 294 (271)           -           -           - 35 
IME pilgrimage 6           -           -           -           -           - 6 
Strategic Development Funding 1 191 (191)           -           -           - 1 
Ministry in parishes 1,942 52 3           -           - 118 2,115 
#JTIPQT��0GmDF�&RVJQNFOU           -           -           -           -           -           -           -
Music           - 4 (7) 3           -           -           -
Totals for restricted funds 26,883 1,635 (959) (794)           - 372 27,137

Expendable endowment
#FOFmDF�)PVTFT 56,019  -  - -  -  - 56,019

Permanent endowment
Stipend Capital Account 34,956 388           - (388) 483 (10) 35,429 
Endowments for ministry in parishes 3,202 96           - (96)           - 221 3,423 

38,158 484           - (484) 483 211 38,852 

Total endowment funds 94,177 484           - (484) 483 211 94,871 

Grand totals for all funds 126,396 13,011 (14,524)           - 483 300 125,666 

SALISBURY DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

29. Prior year fund movements
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2020 Tangible Investments Current Assets 
excl cash

Cash Current 
liabilities

Long term 
liabilities

Net assets

£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Unrestricted funds
General 2,041 2,324 669 1,034 (410) (2,495) 3,163 
Designated funds
Clergy Conference  -  -  - 78  -  - 78 
Aldhelm Mission  - 255  -  -  -  - 255 
Ordinands Support  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Crompton  - 255  - (93)  -  - 162 
Totals for designated funds            - 510            - (15)   -       - 495 

Totals for unrestricted funds 2,041 2,834 669 1,019 (410) (2,495) 3,658 
    

Restricted funds
Pastoral & Development (DPA) 19,952 3,362 361 1,213  - (92) 24,796 
Stipend Income Account  -  -  - -  -  -  - 
The Sudans
   Sudan General /                    
   Relief & Development

 -  -  - 122  -  - 122 

   Sudan Medical Link  -  -  - 27  -  - 27 
   Sudan Juba School  -  -  - 24  -  - 24 
Milton Abbey  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Latvia  -  -  - (3)  -  - (3)
Choral  -  4  - 9  -  - 13 
RME  -  -  - 35  -  - 35 
IME pilgrimage  -  -  - 6  -  - 6 
Strategic Development Funding  -  - 44 (43)  -  - 1 
#JTIPQTh�0GmDF�&RVJQNFOU  -  - 3 (3)  -  -  - 
Ministry in parishes  - 1,924  - 192  -  - 2,116 
Music  -  -  -  - - -   - 
Totals for restricted funds 19,952 5,290 408 1,579      - (92) 27,137 

    
Expendable endowment
#FOFmDF�)PVTFT 56,338        -             - 1 (320)      - 56,019 

Permanent endowment
Stipend Capital Account 15,224 19,628 150 1,109                

- 
(682) 35,429 

Endowments for ministry          
in parishes

    - 3,427        - (4)            -      - 3,423 

15,224 23,055 150 1,105        - (682) 38,852 

Total endowment funds 71,562 23,055 150 1,106 (320) (682) 94,871 
      

Grand totals for all funds 93,555 31,179 1,227 3,704 (730) (3,269) 125,666 

Fixed assets Creditors

SALISBURY DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

30. Prior year summary of assets by fund
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Analysis of funds
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds comprise those funds which are available for application for 
the general purposes of the DBF as set out in its governing document.  

The General Fund meets or receives the balance on activities 
funded by the Parish Share through the Diocesan budget. These 
activities include principally the costs of stipendiary ministry in the 
parishes of the Diocese, including clergy housing, as well as all 
Diocesan activities in support of parish ministry. The general fund 
also meets all governance costs.

The Clergy Conference Fund meets the costs of the clergy 
residential conference, which is held every three or four years, with 
the most recent being held during 2017. The Diocesan budget 
JODMVEFT�B�QSPWJTJPO�FBDI�ZFBS�	b��L�JO�����
�GPS�UIF�GVOE
�XIJDI�JT�
then used to meet the conference costs. 

The Aldhelm Mission Fund was established in 2004, to 
commemorate, in 2005, the 1300th anniversary of the consecration 
PG�"MEIFMN�BT�mSTU�#JTIPQ�PG�4IFSCPSOF��5IF�QVSQPTF�PG�UIF�GVOE�JT�
to support new expressions of church in the Diocese and to help 
fund mission posts. Applications are invited from within the Diocese 
for projects that connect the church to the wider community for the 
purpose of proclaiming the gospel.

7KH�2UGLQDQGV·�6XSSRUW�)XQG was established by the DBF in 2005, 
to provide a fund out of which the unpredictable costs of supporting 
ordinands and their families being sponsored by the Diocese can  
be met. 

The Crompton Fund was established by the DBF in 2005, from 
a generous bequest from Col John Crompton. The fund is used 
for clergy work-based learning, ministry skills development and   
special situations.

The Designated Property Fund was created in 2021 to hold all 
QSPQFSUJFT�UIBU�BSF�OPU�UFBN�WJDBSBHFT�PS�CFOFmDF�IPVTFT�
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Restricted funds
The income funds of the DBF include restricted funds comprising the following 
unexpended balances of donations, grants and investment income to be applied 
GPS�TQFDJmD�QVSQPTFT�

Pastoral & Development Fund (DPA) its purposes are laid down in 
the Pastoral Measure 1983, the main ones being:
• to meet costs incurred for the purposes of the Measure or any 

scheme or order made by the Measure except for salaries of 
regular Diocesan employees.

• to meet costs of disposing of or maintaining houses or churches 
vested in the DBF or Church Commissioners.

• for transfer to the DSF Capital or Income Funds.

The DBF uses the fund principally for capital housing costs, 
redundant churches and for grants and loans to parishes for      
capital projects. 

Stipend Income Account receives the income arising from the 
Stipends Fund Capital Account and other income restricted to provide 
for stipends of clergy in the Diocese. As so far this has always been 
less than the cost of stipends, the income has always fully expended 
with no balance carried forward.

The Sudan Funds constitute the funds of the DBF established to 
promote and manage the link between the Diocese of Salisbury and 
the Episcopal Church of the Sudan (ECS) which was established in 
1973. The detailed management of the Sudan Funds is delegated 
to the Diocesan Sudan Committee which reports to the DBF and is 
represented on it. The Committee’s activities are channelled through 
four separate funds:
• Sudan General Fund’s primary purpose is the theological 

education and education more generally of Sudanese, both 
through supporting individuals in their training for ministry, 
and also the institutions and schools providing such training 
and education. The general fund also receives and passes on 
donations from parishes in the Diocese of Salisbury which have 
established links with the Church in Sudan, mainly through visits 
from Sudanese bishops and other clergy. 

• Sudan Relief & Development Fund provides relief aid and grant 
aid for development projects.

• Sudan Medical Link Fund was established in 1986 through an 
initiative of Mrs Jill Baker. It funds and ships medical supplies into 
clinics in Sudan and supports training for health workers.

• Sudan Juba Fund looks after Juba School channelling money into 
support of the school.
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Milton Abbey Fund pays for the general maintenance costs of 
Milton Abbey and St Catherine at Milton Abbas. Grant income is 
sought for larger projects.

Latvia Fund holds the funds received to promote the Diocesan 
link with the Evangelical Lutheran Church of Latvia.

Diocesan Choral Fund dates from 1861 and holds the funds of 
the Group engaged with the running of choral festivals and the 
promotion of high standards of church music in the Diocese. The 
detailed management of the fund is delegated to the Diocesan 
Choral Group which reports to the DBF.
The fund was closed during the 2021 and money transferred 
to the Aldhelm Fund where it will be used for the promotion of  
church music.

%LVKRSV·�2IÀFH�(TXLSPHQW�)XQG was established in 2007 
following the Church Commissioners decision to devolve certain 
SFTQPOTJCJMJUJFT�GPS�CJTIPQT��PGmDF�FRVJQNFOU�BOE�*5�TVQQPSU�UP�
Dioceses. This responsibility was accompanied by funding which 
JT�SFTUSJDUFE�UP�UIJT�TQFDJmD�QVSQPTF�BOE�BO�BOOVBM�HSBOU�JO�GVUVSF�
years is anticipated to cover the DBF’s costs in this area.

Other Restricted Funds are a number of trusts for, or to support 
ministry in parishes.
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Endowment funds
Endowment funds represent those assets which must be held either long term or 
permanently by the DBF.

Expendable Endowments
Stipend Capital Account Adoption of total return in principle with regards 
to investments held in the endowment fund Stipend Capital Account was 
agreed by Bishop’s Council in 2021. Under the Diocesan Stipends Fund 
(Amendment) Measure S104b of Charities Act 2011 the Stipend Capital 
account may be split into capital funds and unapplied total return. 
The DBF is permitted to allocate monies from the unapplied total return 
FMFNFOU
�TVDI�TVNT�BT�UIF�%#'�TFF�BQQSPQSJBUF�GPS�UIF�CFOFmU�PG�TUJQFOET�
or stipend-related costs provided that the DBF exercises its statutory duty 
UP�CF�FWFO�IBOEFE�BT�CFUXFFO�QSFTFOU�BOE�GVUVSF�CFOFmDJBSJFT�BOE�UIBU�JU�
maintains its unapplied total return at a level to ensure it remains positive 
after having due regard to the volatility of the investment markets. The 
DBF’s objective is also to maintain the value of capital funds in real terms. 
"�USBOTGFS�PG�b����N�IBT�CFFO�NBEF�UP�6OBQQMJFE�5PUBM�3FUVSO�JO������
MFBWJOH�b����N�JO�UIF�4UJQFOE�$BQJUBM�"DDPVOUT�BT�GVOET�UIBU�NVTU�CF�
held as investments for the future. 

%HQHÀFH�+RXVHV�5IJT�SFQSFTFOUT�UIF�WBMVF�PG�UIF�CFOFmDF�IPVTFT�JO�
UIF�%JPDFTF��8IFO
�GPMMPXJOH�QBTUPSBM�SFPSHBOJTBUJPO
�CFOFmDF�IPVTFT�
are no longer required they are transferred either to the Pastoral and 
Development fund or to the Stipend Capital account according to the 
decision of Bishop’s Council.

Permanent Endowments
The DBF holds a number of permanent endowments to support parochial ministry.
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Analysis of transfers between funds

Transfers 2021 General 
Fund

Designated 
Property 

Stipend 
Income

Stipend 
Capital

Unapplied 
Total 

Return 
Capital

Endowment 
for Parish 

Ministry

Restricted 
for Parish 

Ministry

%HQHÀFH�
House 

Clergy 
Conference 

Ordinands 
Support

Crompton DPA Milton 
Abbey 

Fund

Latvia Music Aldhelm Choral IME Rural 
Hope

Total

Positive = payment £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

1 Stipend income account transfers Income to      
General Fund

(862) 862  -   

2 Payment for Clergy Conference 15 (15)  -   
3 Payment General Fund Ordinands 

maintenance
165 (165)  -   

4 $SPNQUPO�'VOE�USBOTGFST�b��L�UP��������
General Fund for clergy wellbeing

(20) 20  -   

5 DPA pays for ingoing works and            
major repairs

(333) 333  -   

6 %1"�USBOTGFST�b���N�UP�TVQQPSU���������
General Fund

(1,500) 1,500  -   

7 Property DPA  transferred to Designated 
Property Fund

(18,388) 18,388  -   

8 General Fund pays for expenditure 
maintaining Milton Abbey 

18 (18)  -   

9 %1"�QBZT�#FOFmDF�)PVTF�'VOE�JO�PSEFS�UP�
clear inter-fund loans

(320) 320  -   

10 4UJQFOE�$BQJUBM�USBOTGFST�b����N�UP�
unapplied total return

(19,101) 19,101

Transfer investment income  -   
11 From Stipend Capital Fund to General        

for Stipends
(353) 353  -   

12 From Endowment for parish ministry to 
General Fund

(100) 100  -   

13 From Restricted parish ministry to       
General Fund

(53) 53  -   

Clear balances  -   
14 Choral fund has closed and transfers 

balance to Aldhelm 
(15) 15  -   

15 IME Pilgrimage- fund no longer required (6) 6  -   
16 Rural hope - clear small balance (1) 1  -   
17 Latvia Fund balance cleared from      

General Fund
3 (3)  -   

18 General Fund credited with balance on 
Music Fund

(13) 13  -   

Total (3,040) (18,388) 862 (18,748) 19,101 100 53 (320) (15) (165) 20 20,541 (18) (3) 13 (15) 15 6 1 - 
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Transfers 2021 General 
Fund

Designated 
Property 

Stipend 
Income

Stipend 
Capital

Unapplied 
Total 

Return 
Capital

Endowment 
for Parish 

Ministry

Restricted 
for Parish 

Ministry

%HQHÀFH�
House 

Clergy 
Conference 

Ordinands 
Support

Crompton DPA Milton 
Abbey 

Fund

Latvia Music Aldhelm Choral IME Rural 
Hope

Total

Positive = payment £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

1 Stipend income account transfers Income to      
General Fund

(862) 862  -   

2 Payment for Clergy Conference 15 (15)  -   
3 Payment General Fund Ordinands 

maintenance
165 (165)  -   

4 $SPNQUPO�'VOE�USBOTGFST�b��L�UP��������
General Fund for clergy wellbeing

(20) 20  -   

5 DPA pays for ingoing works and            
major repairs

(333) 333  -   

6 %1"�USBOTGFST�b���N�UP�TVQQPSU���������
General Fund

(1,500) 1,500  -   

7 Property DPA  transferred to Designated 
Property Fund

(18,388) 18,388  -   

8 General Fund pays for expenditure 
maintaining Milton Abbey 

18 (18)  -   

9 %1"�QBZT�#FOFmDF�)PVTF�'VOE�JO�PSEFS�UP�
clear inter-fund loans

(320) 320  -   

10 4UJQFOE�$BQJUBM�USBOTGFST�b����N�UP�
unapplied total return

(19,101) 19,101

Transfer investment income  -   
11 From Stipend Capital Fund to General        

for Stipends
(353) 353  -   

12 From Endowment for parish ministry to 
General Fund

(100) 100  -   

13 From Restricted parish ministry to       
General Fund

(53) 53  -   

Clear balances  -   
14 Choral fund has closed and transfers 

balance to Aldhelm 
(15) 15  -   

15 IME Pilgrimage- fund no longer required (6) 6  -   
16 Rural hope - clear small balance (1) 1  -   
17 Latvia Fund balance cleared from      

General Fund
3 (3)  -   

18 General Fund credited with balance on 
Music Fund

(13) 13  -   

Total (3,040) (18,388) 862 (18,748) 19,101 100 53 (320) (15) (165) 20 20,541 (18) (3) 13 (15) 15 6 1 - 
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Lay staff 
Church Workers Pension Fund (CWPF) 
DBF participates in the Pension Builder Scheme section of CWPF for lay staff. CWPF is 
administered by the Church of England Pensions Board, which holds the CWPF assets 
separately from those of the Employer and other participating employers.
CWPF has two sections:

 1.� WKH�'HÀQHG�%HQHÀWV�6FKHPH
 2. the Pension Builder Scheme

        

'HÀQHG�%HQHÀWV�6FKHPH�
5IF�%FmOFE�#FOFmUT�4DIFNF�	%#4
�TFDUJPO�PG�UIF�$IVSDI�8PSLFST�1FOTJPO�'VOE�
QSPWJEFT�CFOFmUT�GPS�MBZ�TUBGG�CBTFE�PO�mOBM�QFOTJPOBCMF�TBMBSJFT�
For funding purposes, DBS is divided into sub-pools in respect of each participating 
employer as well as a further sub-pool, known as the Life Risk Pool. The Life Risk Pool 
exists to share certain risks between employers, including those relating to mortality and 
post-retirement investment returns.
The division of the DBS into sub-pools is notional and is for the purpose of calculating 
ongoing contributions.
They do not alter the fact that the assets of the DBS are held as a single trust fund out 
PG�XIJDI�BMM�UIF�CFOFmUT�BSF�UP�CF�QSPWJEFE��'SPN�UJNF�UP�UJNF
�B�OPUJPOBM�QSFNJVN�JT�
transferred from employers’ sub-pools to the Life Risk Pool and all pensions and death 
CFOFmUT�BSF�QBJE�GSPN�UIF�-JGF�3JTL�1PPM��5IF�TDIFNF�JT�B�NVMUJ�FNQMPZFS�TDIFNF�BT�
described in Section 28 of FRS 102. It is not possible to attribute DBS assets and liabilities 
UP�TQFDJmD�FNQMPZFST
�TJODF�FBDI�FNQMPZFS
�UISPVHI�UIF�-JGF�3JTL�4FDUJPO
�JT�FYQPTFE�
to actuarial risks associated with the current and former employees of other entities 
participating in DBS. This means that contributions are accounted for as if DBS were a 
EFmOFE�DPOUSJCVUJPO�TDIFNF�
"�WBMVBUJPO�PG�%#4�JT�DBSSJFE�PVU�PODF�FWFSZ�UISFF�ZFBST��5IF�NPTU�SFDFOUMZ�mOBMJTFE�XBT�
carried out as at 31 December 2019. In this valuation, the Life Risk Section was shown to 
CF�JO�EFmDJU�CZ�b���N�BOE�b���N�XBT�OPUJPOBMMZ�USBOTGFSSFE�GSPN�UIF�FNQMPZFST��TVC�QPPMT�
to the Life Risk Section. This increased the Employer contributions that would otherwise 
IBWF�CFFO�QBZBCMF��5IF�PWFSBMM�EFmDJU�JO�%#4�XBT�b����N��5IF�OFYU�BDUVBSJBM�WBMVBUJPO�JT�
due at 31 December 2022.
Following the valuation, the Employer has entered into an agreement with the Church 
Workers Pension Fund to pay a contribution rate of 29.9% of pensionable salary. This has 
CFFO�SFEVDFE�UP�SFnFDU�UIF�GBDU�UIBU�UIF�4BMJTCVSZ�QBSU�PG�UIF�TDIFNF�JT�JO�DSFEJU�

Pension Builder Scheme
Salisbury DBF participates in the Pension Builder Classic section of the Pension       
Builder Scheme.
Pension Builder Classic provides a pension, accumulated from contributions paid and 
converted into a deferred annuity during employment based on terms set and reviewed by 
the Church of England Pensions Board from time to time. Discretionary increases may also 
be added, depending on investment returns and other factors.
There is no sub-division of assets between employers in each section of the Pension 
Builder Scheme. 

Pensions  
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December
2021

December
2020

Number of members at this Responsible Body 178 193

The scheme is considered to be a multi-employer scheme as described in Section 
28 of FRS 102. This is because it is not possible to attribute the Pension Builder 
4DIFNF�T�BTTFUT�BOE�MJBCJMJUJFT�UP�TQFDJmD�FNQMPZFST�BOE�NFBOT�UIBU�DPOUSJCVUJPOT�
BSF�BDDPVOUFE�GPS�BT�JG�UIF�4DIFNF�XFSF�B�EFmOFE�DPOUSJCVUJPO�TDIFNF���
A valuation of the Pension Builder Scheme is carried out once every three years. The 
most recent valuation was carried out as at 31 December 2019. The next valuation is 
due as at 31 December 2022.  
'PS�UIF�1FOTJPO�#VJMEFS�$MBTTJD�TFDUJPO
�UIF�WBMVBUJPO�SFWFBMFE�B�EFmDJU�PG�b���N�PO�
the ongoing assumptions used. At the most recent annual review, the DBF chose to 
grant a discretionary bonus of 3% following improvements in the funding position over 
������5IFSF�JT�OP�SFRVJSFNFOU�GPS�EFmDJU�QBZNFOUT�BU�UIF�DVSSFOU�UJNF��5IF�%JPDFTF�PG�
Salisbury is in a surplus situation.
The legal structure of the scheme is such that if another employer fails, DBF could 
become responsible for paying a share of the failed employer’s pension liabilities.

Clergy personnel 
Clergy Pension Scheme
5IF�NFNCFSTIJQ�mHVSFT�UIBU�XF�IPME�BT�BU�%FDFNCFS������BOE�%FDFNCFS������GPS�
Salisbury DBF are set out in the table below. These are used as part of the DBF’s 
DBMDVMBUJPO�PG�UIF�EFmDJU�DPOUSJCVUJPOT�JO�QBZNFOU�BU�FBDI�ZFBS�FOE
�XIJDI�JO�UVSO�GFFE�
into the FRS102 calculations, so are provided here for reference.

 

The DBF participates in the Church of England Funded Pensions Scheme for 
TUJQFOEJBSZ�DMFSHZ
�B�EFmOFE�CFOFmU�QFOTJPO�TDIFNF��5IJT�TDIFNF�JT�BENJOJTUFSFE�
by the Church of England Pensions Board, which holds the assets of the schemes 
separately from those of the Responsible Bodies.
Each participating Responsible Body in the scheme pays contributions at a common 
contribution rate applied to pensionable stipends.
The scheme is considered to be a multi-employer scheme as described in Section 
28 of FRS 102. This means it is not possible to attribute the Scheme’s assets and 
MJBCJMJUJFT�UP�FBDI�TQFDJmD�3FTQPOTJCMF�#PEZ
�BOE�UIJT�NFBOT�DPOUSJCVUJPOT�BSF�
BDDPVOUFE�GPS�BT�JG�UIF�4DIFNF�XFSF�B�EFmOFE�DPOUSJCVUJPO�TDIFNF��
A valuation of the Scheme is carried out once every three years. The most recent 
Scheme valuation completed was carried out at as 31 December 2018. The 2018 
WBMVBUJPO�SFWFBMFE�B�EFmDJU�PG�b��N
�CBTFE�PO�BTTFUT�PG�b�
���N�BOE�B�GVOEJOH�
UBSHFU�PG�b�
���N
�BTTFTTFE�VTJOH�UIF�GPMMPXJOH�BTTVNQUJPO�
• An average discount rate of 3.2% p.a;
• 31*�JOnBUJPO�PG������Q�B��	BOE�QFOTJPO�JODSFBTFT�DPOTJTUFOU�XJUI�UIJT
�
• Increase in pensionable stipends of 3.4% p.a;
• Mortality in accordance with 95% of the S3NA_VL tables, with allowance for 

improvements in mortality rates in line with the CMI2018 extended model with a 
long term annual rate of improvement of 1.5%, a smoothing parameter of seven 
and an initial addition to mortality improvements of 0.5% p.a.
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Following the 31 December 2018 valuation, a recovery plan was put in place until                 
���%FDFNCFS������BOE�UIF�EFmDJU�SFDPWFSZ�DPOUSJCVUJPOT�	BT�B�QFSDFOUBHF�PG�QFOTJPOBCMF�
stipends) are as set out in the table below.

"T�BU����%FDFNCFS�����
����%FDFNCFS������BOE����%FDFNCFS������UIF�EFmDJU�SFDPWFSZ�
contributions under the recovery plan in force were as set out in the above table.
'PS�TFOJPS�PGmDF�IPMEFST
�QFOTJPOBCMF�TUJQFOET�BSF�BEKVTUFE�JO�UIF�DBMDVMBUJPOT�CZ�B�NVMUJQMF
�
as set out in the Scheme’s rules.
4FDUJPO������"�PG�'34�����SFRVJSFT�BHSFFE�EFmDJU�SFDPWFSZ�QBZNFOUT�UP�CF�SFDPHOJTFE�BT�B�
liability. The movement in the balance sheet liability over 2020 and over 2021 is set out in the 
table below.

 

 

�$PNQSJTFT�DIBOHF�JO�BHSFFE�EFmDJU�SFDPWFSZ�QMBO
�BOE�DIBOHF�JO�EJTDPVOU�SBUF��������������������������������������
 and assumptions between year-ends.

5IJT�MJBCJMJUZ�SFQSFTFOUT�UIF�QSFTFOU�WBMVF�PG�UIF�EFmDJU�DPOUSJCVUJPOT�BHSFFE�BT�BU�UIF�
accounting date and has been valued using the following assumptions. In general, these 
BSF�TFU�CZ�SFGFSFODF�UP�UIF�EVSBUJPO�PG�UIF�EFmDJU�SFDPWFSZ�QBZNFOUT�CVU�BT�BU����%FDFNCFS�
2021, under accounting rules the payments are not discounted since the remaining recovery 
QMBO�JT�MFTT�UIBO����NPOUIT��/P�QSJDF�JOnBUJPO�BTTVNQUJPO�JT�OFFEFE�TJODF�QFOTJPOBCMF�
stipends for the remainder of the recovery plan are already known.

The legal structure of the scheme is such that if another Responsible Body fails, DBF could 
become responsible for paying a share of that Responsible Body’s pension liabilities.

  

December 2021 December 2020 December 2019

Discount rate 0.0% 0.2% 1.1% p.a
1SJDF�JOnBUJPO n/a 3.1% 2.8% p.a
Increase to total pensionable payroll -1.5% 1.6% 1.3% p.a

Percentage of pensionable stipends January 2018 to 
December 2020

January 2021 to 
December 2022

%FmDJU�SFQBJS�DPOUSJCVUJPOT 11.9% 7.1%

Percentage of pensionable stipends 2021 2020

Balance sheet liability at 1 January 682,000 1,165,000

%FmDJU�DPOUSJCVUJPO�QBJE (327,000) (548,000)
Interest cost (recognised in SoFA) 1,000 10,000
Remaining change to the balance sheet liability* 
(recognised in SoFA)

(46,000) 55,000

Balance sheet liability at 31 December 310,000 682,000
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